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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that the Thirty-Second Annual General Meeting of the Members of ATN lnternational
Limited will be heid at the Hotary Sadan, 94/2 Chowringhee Boad, Kolkata - 700 O2O on Monday, 26th September,
2016 at 9.30 A.M. to transact the following business:-

OBDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year
ended 3'1 st March, 2016 together with the reports of the Directors, and Auditors, thereon.

2 To appoint a Director in place ol Smt. Krishna Banerjee (DlN : 06997186), who retires by rotation and
being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment.

3. To appoint M/s. P. K. Ajitsaria & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 317046E), as Auditors,
who shall hold office from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of the Thirty-
Fifth Annual General Meeting (AGM) ol the Company to be held in the year 2019 (subject to ratification of
their appointment at every AGM) and to ,ix their remuneration.

Registered Oftice :
10, Princep Street,
2nd Floor,
Kolkata - 700 072

Date : 1 Ith August,2016

By Order of the Board
For ATN lnternational Limited

- Santosh Kumar Jain
Managing Director
DIN No. 00174235
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NOTES :

1. A Member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy
to attend and vote instead o, himself/hersell and the proxy need not be a Member of the Company.
Proxies, in order to be effective, must be received at the Registered Office of the Company at 10,

Princep Street, 2nd Floor, Kolkata 700 072, not less than forty-eight hours before the commencement
of the Annual General Meeting. A person can acl as proxy on behalf of members not exceeding lifty
(50) and holding in the aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company. As

per Secretarial Standard 2, the Proxy-holder are requested to bring valid ldentity prools (viz, PAN Card,

Voter lD Card, Passport, Aadhar Card etc.) at the venue of the meeting for identilication.

2. Corporate members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the Annual General Meeting

are requested to send to the Company a certified true copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their
representative to attend and vote on their behall at the Meeting.

3. Notice ot Annual General Meeting is being sent to all the Members, whose names appear in the Register

ol Members/list of Beneficial Owners as received from Depositories on 12th August, 2016. Any member
who acquire shares and became Member after dispatch of Notice and Annual Beport may obtain the same

trom Company website: www.atninternational.co.in or may request for a copy ol the same by writing to
the Company at inlo @ atninternational.co.in or Registrar and Share Transfer Agent ('Registrar') at

mdpldc @yahoo.com.

4. Members are requested to bring their attendance slip along with their copy of Annual Report to the Annual

General Meeting. Members holding shares in dematerialised form are requested to bring their supporting

evidence in repsect ol their Client lD & DP lD Nos. for easier identification of the attendance at the meeting.

5. ln case of joint holders attending the meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in order of names will

be entitled to vote-

6. Membeis holding shares in electronic lorm are requested to intimate immediately any change in their address
' or bank mandates to their Depository Participants with whorn they are mainlaining their demat accounts-

Members holding shares in physical form are requested tc, adv,se any change in their address or bank

mandates immediately to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent ('Registrar').

7. The Securities and Exchange Board of lndia (SEBI) has m..ndatcd the submission ol Permanent Account

Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market. l\ilember holding shares in electronic form are,

therelore, requested to submit the PAN to their Depositor'/ Participants with whom they are maintaining

their demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN details to the

Company/Registrar.

8. Members holding shares in the physical torm ahd desirous of making/changing nomination in respect of

their shareholding in the Company, as permitted under Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules

made tlere under are requested to submit the prescribed Form No. SH-13 andSH-14, as applicable for

this purpose 10 the Company's Registrar, who will provide the Form on request.
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9. Equity shares of the Company are under compulsory demat trading by all investors. Considering the
advantage ol scripless trading, members are encouraged to consider dematerialisation of their shareholding
so as to avoid inconvenience in luture.

10, Members are requested to inform lheir correct email address, if any to the Depositories (i, shares held in
demat form) and to our Registrar (if shares are held in physical form) in compliance of Green lnitiative
circular no. 1712011 dated 21 .04.201 1 and 18/201 1 dated 29.04.201 'l issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs
to facilitate the Company to send notice/document through e-mail.

11. Members holding shares in multiple lolios are requested to submit their application to Begistrar for
consolidation of tolios into signle folio.

12. Members seeking any inrormation with regard to the Accounts are requested to write to the Company at
an early date so as to enable lhe managemenl to keep the information ready.

13. Additional information pursuant to Begulation 36(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements)
Begulations, 2015 pertaining to the Directors being appointed/re-appointed at the Annual General Meeting,
forms integral part ol lhe notice.

14. Flelevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice are open for inspection by the members at
the registered olfice of the Company on all working days, during business hours up to the date of the
Annual General Meeting.

15. The Register of Members and Share Transler Books of the Company will remain closed from Tuesday,
20th September, 2016 to Monday, 26th September, 2016 (both days inctusive).

'16. Process and Manner tor Members opling to vote through etectronic means :

l. ln compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 20.13 read with Flule 20 of the
Companies (Management & Administralion) Rules,2014 as ammended , Begulation 44 of the Listing
Regulations and any other applicable provisions, if any, the Company is pleased to provide members facility
to exercise their right to vote using an electronic voting system lrom a place other than the venue of the
AGM ("remote e-voting") at the 32nd Annual General Meeting (AGM) and the business may be transacted
through remote e-voting setvices provided by Central Depository Services (lndia) Limited (CDSL). lt is
hereby clarified that it is not mandatory lor member to vore using the remote e-voting facility, and member
may avail ol the facility at his/her/its discretion. The instructions for e-votlng are as under :

(i) Log on to the e-voling website www.evotingindia.com

(ii) Click on "Sharehotders" rab.

(iii) Now Enter your User lD

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary tD,

b. For NSDL: 8 Character Dp tD followed by 8 Digits Client lD,

4
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c. Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company.

(iv) Next enter the lmage Verilication as displayed and Click on Login.

(v) lf you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an
earlier voting ol any company, then your existing password is to be used.

(vi) However, lf you are a first time user, follow the steps given below :

For Memb'ers holding shares in Demat Form and physical Form

PAN- Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric .PAN issued by lncome Tax Department (Applicable
for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

Dividend Bank
Details or Date
of Birth #

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as
recorded in your demat account or in the company records in order to login.

tMembers who have not updaled their PAN with the Company/Depository Participant are requested to
enter in the PAN field the first two letters ol their name and 8 digit (including zeros) sequence number
communicated to you. ln case the sequence number is less than 8 digits enter the applicable number ol
0's before the number after the first two characters of the name in CAPITAL letters. Eg. lf your name is
Flamesh Kumar with sequence number I then enter RAOOOO0OO1 in the pAN field.

# ln case both the details are not recorded with the depository or company please enter the member id /
folio number in the Dividend Bank details lield.

(vii) After entering these details appropriately, click on ,,SUBMIT', tab.

(viii) Members holding shares in physical lorm will then reach directly the Company selection screen.
However, members holding shares in demat form will now reach 'Password Creation' menu wherein
they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field.

Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders lor voting for resolutions of
any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through
CDSL platform. lt is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and
take utmost care to keep your paisword confidential.

(ix) For l\4embers holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the
resolutions contained in this Notice.

(x) Click on the EVSN for the relevant <ATN INTEBNATIONAL LIMITED> on which you choose to vote.

(xi) on the voting page, you will see "RESoLUT|oN DEScRtpIoN" and against the same lhe option
"YES/NO" Ior voting. Select the option YES or NO as desire.l. The option YES impties that you
assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissert to the Besolution.

t:



ATN INTERNATIONAL LIMITED Annual Report 2015-16

(xii) Click on the "RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK" il you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

(xiii) After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on "SUBMIT". A confirmation box
will be displayed. ll you wish to confirm your vote, click on "OK", else to change your vote, click on
"CANCEL" and accordingly modily your vote.

(xiv) Once you "CONFlRM" your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

(xv) You can also take out print of the voting done by you by clicking on "Click here to print" option on

the Voting page.

(xvi) lf a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User lD and the image

veritication code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.

(xvii) Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL's mobile app m-Voting available lor android based
mobiles. The m-Voting app can be downloaded fiom Google Play Store. Apple and Windows phone

users can download the app from the App store and Windows Phone Slore respectively. Please
lollow the instructions as prompted by the mobile app while voting on your mobile.

(xviii) Note lor Non-lndividual Shareholders & Custodians :

O Non-lndividual shareholders (i.e. other than lndividuals, HUF, NBI etc.) and Custodian are required

to log on to https://www.evotingindia.com and register themselves as Corporates-

O They should submit a scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the
entity to helpdesk.evoting @ cdslindia.com.

O After receiving the lolin details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and

password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) which they wish to vole on.

O The list ol accounts should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of the

accounts they would be able to cast their vote.

O They should upload a scanned copy ol the Board Besolution and Power of Attorn"y ieoel *ni"n
they have issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer

to verify the same.

(xix) The voting period begins on Friday, 23rd September,2016 at 9.00 a.m. and ends on Sunday, 25th

September, 2016 at 5.00 p.m. During this period shareholdeis of the Company, hoiding shares either

in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-otf date of 1gth September,2016, may

cast their vole electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting lhereafter.

(xx) Any person who acquired shares and became Member after dispatch of Notice or 32nd AGM and

holds shares as o, the cut-ofl date of 1gth September, 2016 may obtain the login lD and password

. lor remote e-voting by sending a request to the Company's BTA at md'pldc @ yahoo.com

t:
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(xxi) A facility tor voting through Ballot paper is made available at lhe AGM venue ahd lhe Members
attending the meeting who have not cast their vote by remote e-voting can exercise their right during
the meeting on 26th September, 2016 between 9.30 A.M. till the conclusion ol the meeting.

For abundant clarity, please note that Members who have already cast their vote by remote e-voting
prior to the meeting date may also attend the meeting but shall not be entitled to cast their vote
again. However, in case members cast their vote by exercising both options i.e., physical and e-
voting, then vote casted through e-voting shall only be taken into consideration and treated as valid
whereas vote casted physically at the meeting shall be treated as invalid.

(xxii) ln case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked
Ouestions ("FAOs") and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com under help section or
write an email to helpdesk.evoting @ cdslindia.com.

ll. The voting rights o, the shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid-up equity share
capital ol the Company as on the cut-off date of .1gth September, 2016.

lll. Mr. Atul Kumar Labh (c.P. No. 3238, Membership No. FCS 4848) of A. K. Labh & co., pracricing company
Secretaries has been appointed as Scrutinizer to scrutinize the remote e-voting and voting process to be
carried oul at the AGM in a fair and transparent manner.

lV. The Scrutinizer shall within forty eight hours from the conclusion of meeting unblock the votes cast through
remote e-voting, after counting the voles cast at lhe meeting in the presence of at least two witnesses
not ih employment ol the Company and make a consolidated scrutinizer's report of the votes cast in favour
or against, if any, and forward to the Chairman ol the AGM who shall countersign the same and declare
the Besults of the voting forthwith and the resolulions will be deemed to be passed on the AGM date
subJect to receipt ol the requisite numbers of votes in favour ol the resolutions.

V. The consolidated results declared along with the Scrutinizer's report shall be placed on the Company's
website and on the website ol CDSL. The results will also be communicated to the Stock Exchanges
where shares of the Company are listed.

Registered Off ice :
10, Princep Street,
2nd Flecr,
Kolkata - 700 072

Date : l lth August,2016

By Order of the Board
For ATN lnternational Limited

Santosh Kumar Jain' Managing Dkector
DIN No. 00174235

t:
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Additional lntormation ol the Directors seeking appointmenure-appointment at the Annual General
Meeting in pursuance o, Regulation 36(3) ot SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 :

Name ot the Director Smt. Krishna Baneriee

DIN 06997186

Oate ol Birth 'I st January,'1964

Date of Appointment 30th September, 20'14

Oualilication B.Com, MA

Expertise in specific
functional area

Smt. Baneiee is having a vast experience
in corporate and share related matters.

Directorship of other public
companies (") (as at 31 .03.2016)

Silicon Valley lntotech Lld.
CMS Finvest Ltd.
Herald Commerce Ltd.

Chairman/Membership in the Committees
of other public companies (.')

Member in Audit Committee
ol Herald Commerce Ltd.

Shareholding in Equity Shares of the
Company and % oI holding

(') Excluding directorship held in private limited/toreign companies and Companies registered under Section 8 o,
Companies Act, 2013.

(.') Audit Committee & Stakeholders Belationship Committee are considered.

Land Mark ol Botary Sadan : Beside Rotary Sadan Park. Route Map is appended below :

I Io
RotrryCbt ,9
olC.hdta ,d,

8or'rys.danP'.r ! /cl/ ,i1:HI][L
lgl t 

Em.mr s'opp.l, or,

xdmcr'Idl." $.unt 
/s.cl
t

souu ron,, era,t r /s
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Directors' Report

Dear Shareholders

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Thirty-second Annual Report of the Company together with the
Audited Accounts for the year ended 3'l st March, 2016.

1. FINANCIALHIGHLIGHTS

The financial performance of the Company for the year under review are given below :

Particulars Year ended
31.03.2016

(Rs.)

Year ended
31.03.2015

(Rs.)

Protiu(Loss) before Exceptional, Extraordinary
Items and Tax (6,912,s08) o,803,417)

Exceptional ltem

Profiu(Loss) betore Extraordinary ltems and tax (6,912,s08) c/,803,417)

Extraordinary ltems (420.1711 1 ,124,062

ProfiU(Loss) belore tax (6,492,337) ' (8,927,479)

Tax expenses :

Deferred Tax (1,889.666) (7,889,307)

ProfiU(Loss) lor the period (4,602,671) 0,038,172)

2. DIVIDEND & RESERVE

ln view of the loss incurred during the year under review, the Board of Direclors do not recommend any
dividend for the linancial year ended 31st March, 201 6.

During the year under review, no amounl was transferred to General Reserve.

3. PERFORMANCE BEVIEW

The Company has incurred loss ol Rs. 4,602,671/- during the tinancial year ended 31st March, 2016. Your
Directors are making all efforts to improve the performance of the Company in future.

4. CHANGE IN NATUBE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY

There was no change in the nature of business of the Company during the financial year ended 3'l st March,
2016.

5. SHARE CAPITAL

The p.aid up equity capital as on March 31 , 2016 was Rs. 1578.00 Lakhs. During the year under review, the
Company has not issued shares with differential voting rights nor has granted stock options or sweat equity.

t:
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6. SUBSUDIARY/JOINTVENTURE/ASSOCIATE

The Company does not have any Subsidiary/Joint Venture/Associate.

7. LISTING OF EOU]TY SHARES

The Equity Shares df your Company are presently listed on three lndian Stock Exchanges viz. National

Stock Exchange (NSE), Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) and Calcutta Stock Exchange (CSE).

Company's shares are not traded in material volumes at stock exchanges other than NSE and BSE. NSE

and BSE account for more than 95% of the traded volumes ol the Company's shares and have extensive

networking of trading ierminals, whictl lacilitates trading by Members/lnvestors.

Listing fees for the linancial year 2016-17 have been paid to the Stock Exchanges.

8, FXED DEPOSITS

During the year under review, your Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Section

73 of the Companies Act, 2Oi3 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

9. LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS

Puisuant.io Section 186(11) of the Companies Act, 2013 any acquisition made by a Company whose
principal business is the acquisition of securities are exempled trom disclosure in the Annual Report.

10. CORPORATESOCIALRESPONSIBILITY

The provisions ol the Companies Act, 2013 regarding Corporate Social Responsibilities are not applicable

to the Company.

1I. DIRECTOBS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

ln accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company and provisions of the Companies Act,

2013, Smt. Krishna Banerjee (DlN : 06997186) retire by rotation and being eligible offer hersell for re-

appointment. The Board recommends her re-appointment for the approval of the members.

Briel resume ol Director seeking re-appointment in pursuance of Regulation 36(3) ol SEBI (LODR)

Regulations, 2015 form part ol the notice o, the 32nd Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Smt. Manisha Lath ceabed to be Company Secretary o, the Company w.e.l. 15th November,2015.

All lndependent Directors have given declarations that they meet the criteria ol independence as laid down

under Section 149 (6) of the Act and Regulalion 16(1)(b) ot SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.

12. BOARDEVALUATION

Pursuant to Lhe provisions ot the Acl and SEBI (LODB) Regulations, 2015, the Board has carried out an
' evaluation of its own performance, performance of the Directors as well as the evaluation ol lhe working

of its committee.

10
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The performance evaluation of the lndependent Directors was carried out by the entire Board, excluding
the Director being evaluated. The performance evaluation of the Managing Director and Non lndependent
Director was carried out by the lndependent Directors at their meeting without the attendance ol Non-
lndependent Directors and members of the management. The Directors were satisfied with the evaluation
results.

13. NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOAHD

The details of the number of meetings of the Board held during the financial year 2015-2016 forms part of
Report on Corporate Governance.

14. INTEHNAL FINANCIAL CONTBOL

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors actively reviews the adequacy and effectiveness of the
internal control system and suggests improvemenls to strengthen the same. ln opinion ol the board, the
existing internal control framework is adequate and commensurate to the size and nature of the business
of the Company. During the year such controls were tested and no reportable malerial weaknesses in the
design or operation were observed.

15. NOMINATION & REMUNERATION POLICY

The Board of Directors has framed a policy which lays down a framework in relation to remuneration of
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees of the Company. This Policy has also laid down
the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes, independence of Director and Board diversity
and criteria lor evaluation ol Board, its Committee and individual Directors. The policy is stated in the
Report on Corporate Governance.

16. VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Company has a mechanism called 'Whistle Blower Policy" lor Directors and employees to report genuine

concerns or grievances. The policy is available on the website ol the Company (www.atninternational.co.in).

17. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Company has a Risk Management Policy in accordance with the provisions of the Act and SEBI
(LODR) Begulations, 2015, which provides a mechanism for risk assessment and mitigation.

At present the Company has not identified any element ol risk which may threaten the existence of the

Company.

18. DTSCLOSURES UNDEB SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENT|ON,
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

Your Directors state that there is an lnternal Complaint Committee to review the cases filed pursuant to
Sexual Harassment ol Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,2O'13 and lurther
state that, there were no cases reported in respect to above mentioned Act.

11
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19. BELATED PABTIES TRANSACTION

All related party transactions that were entered into during the linancial year were in the ordinary course
ot the business and were on arm's length basis. Thus disclosure in Form AOC-2 is not required. Further

lhere were no materially significant related party transactions entered by the company with Promoters,

Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or other persons which may have potential conflict with interest of

the company. The policy on Relaled Party transaction as approved by Board of Directors has been uploaded

on the website of the Company. The web link ol the same is www.atninternational.co.in

Details of the transactions wilh Related Parties are provided in the accompanying financial statements.

20. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDER PASSED BY THE BEGULATOBS OB COURTS

During the year, there are no significant and material order passed by the Begulators/Courts which would
impact the going concern of the Company and its future o-aeration.

21. DIBECTOR'S BESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

ln terms of Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the directors would like to state that:

i) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been lollowed.

ii) the directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments

and estimates that were reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and tair view of the state of

aflairs ol the Company at the end ol the linancial year and of the profit or loss of the Company lor
the year under review.

iii) the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records

in accordance with the provisions of this Act for saleguarding the assets of the Company and for

preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

iv) the directors have prepared the annual accounls on a going concern basis.

v) the directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such

internal financial controls are adequate and were operating eJfectively.

vi) the directors had devised proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable

laws and that such syslem were adequate and operating effectively.

22. AUDITOBS' BEPOBT/SECRETARIALAUDIT REPORT

The observation made in the Auditors' Report read together with relevant notes thereon are selt explanatory

and hence, do not call lor any lurther comments under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The observation made in the Secretarial Audit Beport is self explanatory and hence. do not call for any

further comments.

12
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23. AUDITORS

. Statutory Auditors

' Messers. Shambhu Kedia & Co., Chartered Accountants, Statutory Auditors of the Company, holds ollice
till the conclusion of the ensuing Annual General Meeting. Messers. Shambhu Kedia & Co., Chartered
Accountants expressed their unwillingness lor re-appointment.

The Board recommends the appointment of Messers. P. K. Ajitsaria & Co., Chartered Accountants as
Statutory Auditors ol the Company from conclusion of ensuing Annual General Meeting tili the conclusion
ol Thirty-Fifth Annual General Meeting (AGM) to be held in the year 2019, subject to ratification of their
appointment at every AGM. The Company has received letter from the Auditors to the elfect that their
appointment, if made, would be within the prescribed limits underthe Companies Act, 2013 and they are
not disqualified for appointment.

. Secretarial Auditor

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 ol the Act and The Companies (Appointment and Bemuneration
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors of the company had appointed M/s. B. K.
Barik & Associates, a lirm of Company Secretaries in Practice to undertake the Secretarial Audit ol the
Company for the year ended 31st March, 2016. The Secretarial Audit Report is annexed herewith as
Annexure l.

. lnternal Auditor

M/s. Barkha & Associates, Chartered Accountants performed the duties of internal auditors of the company
for the year ended 31st March, 2016.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Act and Rule 12 (1 ) ol The Companies (Management and Administration)
Rules, 20'14, the extract of Annual Return in form MGT 9 is annexed herewith as Annexure ll.

MATEFIAL CHANGES

There have been no material changes and commitments alfecting the financial position of the company,
which have occurred since 31st March 2016, being the end of the Financial Year ol the Company to which
financial statements relate and the date of the report.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE

During the period under review there was no loreign exchange earnings or out flow.

STATUTORY INFOBMATION

Since the Company does not own any manufacturing facility, requirement .regarding the disclosure of
particulars ol conservation of energy and technology absorption prescribed by the rules is not applicable.
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30.

28.

Registered Off ice :
10, Princep Street,
2nd Floor,
Kolkata - 700 072

Date : I1th August, 2016

PABTICULABS OF EMPLOYEES

The information required pursuant to Section 197 read with rule 5 of the Companies (Appointmenl and
Flemuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in respect of employees ol the company, will be
provided upon request. There are no employees who are in receipt ol remuneration in excess of the litnit
specitied under Rule 5 (2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014. ln terms of Section 136 ol the Act, the reports and accounts are being senl to the members
and others entitled thereto, excluding the information on employees' particulars which is available lor
inspection by the members at the Registered otfice of lhe company during business hours on working
days ot the company up to the date ot ensuing Annual General Meeting. ll any member is interested.in
obtaining a copy thereof, such member may write to the Company in advance.

EMPLOYEH EMPLOYEE RELATIONSHIP

The Company has mainlained a cordial relationship with its employees, which resulted in smooth flow of
business operations during the year under review.

COBPOBATE GOVEFNANCE AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORTS

As per the Listing Agreement with the stock Exchanges, the company has implemented the code on
Corporate Governance. The Corporate Governance compliance certificate obtained from the Auditors ol
the Company is attached to Report on Corporate Governance.

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report and the Report on Corporate Governance lorms an integral
part o, this report. The Board members and Senior management personnel have conlirmed compliance
with the Code of conduct.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Your Direclors acknowledge the support and owe a debt of gratitude to the Members, lnvestors, Consultants
& Bankers. Your Directors'also place on record their sense of appreciation for the valuable contribulion
made by the employees of the Company.

31.

On behalf of the Board of Directors
For ATN lnternational Limited

Santosh Kumar Jain Pranab Chakraborty
ManagingDhector Diector
DIN No.00174235 DIN No.03568360
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Annexure I to the Directors' Beport

Form No. MR - 3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOB THE FINANCIAL YEAB ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2016
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the companies Act, 2o1s and rule No. g of the companies

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial personnet) Rules, 20141

The Members,
i s. ATN INTERNATTONAL LIM|TED
10, Princep Street, 2nd Floor,
Kolkata - 700072

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit ol the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence
to good corporate practice by M/s. ATN INTERNATIONAL LIMITED (hereinafler ca ed the ,,Company',).

Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducV statutory compliance and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification o, the M/s. ATN |NTERNATIoNAL LtMtrED, books, papers, minute books, forms,
and retums filed and other records maintained by the company and also the informaiion provided by the company,
its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct ol secretarial audit, we hereby report in
our.opinion that the company has during the audit period covering the firiancial year ended on 31st March, 2016
complied with all the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the company has proper Board-process
and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafler:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by
M/s. ATN INTERNATIONAL LtMlrED ("the company"), tor the financial year ended on glst March, 2016
according to provision of :-

(i) The Companres Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) The securities contracts (Begulation) Act, 1956 ('scRA') and the rules made thereunder;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Begulations and Bye-laws tramed thereunder;

(iv) The lollowing Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of
lndia Act, 1992 ('SEBI AGt') :-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board ol lndia (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 201 1 ;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board ol lndia (Prohibition of lnsider Trading) Regulations, 1992
and The Securities and Exchange Board ol lndia (Prohibition of lnsider Trading) Regulations,
20'r 5:

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of lndia (Registrars to an lssue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;
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(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of Ingia (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2015.

We also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following :-

(i) Secretarial Standards with respect to Meetings of Board of Directors (SS-1) and General Meetings

(SS-2) issued by The lnstitute of Company Secretaries of lndia, etfective from July 1, 2015.

(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with National Stock Exchange of lndia Limited,

BSE Ltd. and Calcutta Stock Exchange limited.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provision of the Act, Rules, Regulations,

Guidelines, Standards etc mentioned above subject to the lollowing observation :

(a) The Company is in process ol appointing Company Secretary.

We further report that

The Board of Directors o, the Company is duly constiluted with proper balance ol Executive Direclors, Non-

Executive Directors and lndependent Directors. The changes in composition of the Board ol Directors that took

place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act

and Listing Agreement.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda

were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further iniormalion

and clarifications on the.agenda items before the meeting and for meaninglul participation at the meeting.

We lurther report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the

size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations

and guidelines.

Place : Kolkata

Date : 30.05.2016

This repolt
integral paft

is to be
of this

For B. K. BAHIK & ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries

B. K. Barik
Practising Company Secretary

FCS : 5696, C.P.No. 3897

read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure-A and forms an

report.
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' Annexure - A

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1 . Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on these Secretarial records based on our audit.

2 We have lollowed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to oblain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the cont€ints ol the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis
to ensure that correct facts are rellected in Secretarial records. We believe that the processes and
practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis lor our opinion.

3. We have not verilied the correctness and appropriateness of linancial records and Books of Accounts ol
the company.

4. Where ever required; we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance ol laws,
rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5 The compliance ol the provisions ol Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is
the responsibility of management. Our examinalion was limited to the verification of procedures on test
basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor ol the
efficacy or elfectiveness with which the management has conducted the aflairs of the Company.

Place : Kolkata

Date:30:05.2016

For B. K. BARIK & ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries

B. K. Barik
Practising Company Secretary

FCS : 5696, C.P.No. 3897
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Annexure ll to the Directors' Report

FORM NO. MGT 9
EXTBACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

as on linancial year ended on 31st March, 2016

[Pursuantto Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company

(Management & Administration) Rules, 201 4l

I. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

II. PHINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OFTHE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 1O% or more ot the total turnover of the company shall be stated :

0 CIN L65993W81 983PLC080793

ii) Registration Date 24112119A3

iii) Name of the Company ATN INTEBNATIONAL LIMITED

iv) Category / Sub-Category of the Company COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES

v) Address of the Begistered office
and contact details

10, PRINCEP STREET, 2ND FLOOR

KOLKATA . 7OOO72

PHONE : 033-40022880
EMAIL lD : info @ atninternational.co.in

vi) Whelher listed company YES

vii) Name, Address and Contact delails o,
Registrar and Transfer Agent

MAHESHWARI DATAMATICS PVT. LTD,

6, MANGOE LANE, 2ND FLOOR

KOLKATA. 7OOOO1

PHONE : 033-2243580912242248
F M : 033-2248-4787
EMAIL lD: mdpldc @ yahoo.com

st.
No.

Name & Description of main products/services NIC Code ot the
Product / service

7o to total turnover
of the company

Bent received 68100 47.24

2 lnterest lncome 64990 47 .69

III. PARTICULABS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIAFY & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

st.
No.

Name & Address of the
Company

CIN/GLN Holding/
Subsidiary/
Associate

o/o ol
Shares

held

Applicable
Section

1 N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
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Category of Shareholders No. olShares held atthe beginningofthe year No. ol Shares held at the end of the year ofchange

durlng
the year

Oemat Physical Total Tool Total
Shares

Demat Physical Tolal o/@l folal
Shares

A, Promoters
(1) lndian
a) lndividual/HUF 88853 NIL 88853 o.252 888s3 NIL 88853 o.252 NIL
b) Cenkal Govt. NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
c) State Govt (s) NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
d) BodiesCorp. 100148 NIL 100148 0.2539 100148 NIL 100'148 0.2s39 NIL
e) Banks/Fl NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
f) Any Other.. NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Sub-ioral (A) (1):. 189@1 NIL 18!ml 0.4791 'r8g)01 NIL 189001 o,4791 NIL
(2)Foreign

a) NRls - lndividuals NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
b) Other - lndividuals NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
c) Bodies Corp. NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
d) Banks / Fl NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
e) Anv Olher... NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
sub.rotat(a) (2):- NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Total shareholding oI
Promoter (A)=(AX'l )+(AX 2) 189001 NIL 189001 0.4791 189ool NIL 189(m't 0.4791 NIL
B. Public Shareholdinq
1. lnstitutions
a) MutualFunds NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
b) BankVFl 549 1250 1799 0.0046 549 '12fi 1799 0.m46 NIL

c) CenlralGovt. NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

d) State Govt(s) NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
e) VentureCapital Funds NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

l) lnsurance Companies NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
q) Flls NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

h) Foreign Venture
CapitalFunds NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

i) Others (specifv) NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Sub-total (BXl):- 549 't250 1799 0.mil6 549 1250 1799 0.m46 NIL
2. Non-lnstituiions
a) Bodies Corp.

i) lndian 50't 8579 20600 5039179 12.77 4723901 20600 4744501 12.02€6 -5.8477

ii) Overseas 1050 NIL 1050 o.c027 NIL NIL NIL NIL -1m.om
b) lndividuals

i) lndividualshareholders
holding nominalshare
capital uptoFls. 1 lakh 2563/097 1577451 27211548 68.97/3 25477353 1s62901 27040254 68.5431 -0.6295

ii) lndividual shareholders
holding nominalshare
capital in €xcess of
Fls. 'l lakh 53569'r 6 1174250 6531166 16.5556 5*3244 't174000 67172M 17.0272 2.8r'.91

lV. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capitat Break up as percentage o, Total Equity)

(i) Category-wise Share Holding
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Category ot Shareholders No. ol Shares held at the beginning ol ihe yeal No. ol Shares held at the end ol the year %change
durlng

lhe year
Demat Physical Total 7.ol Tolsl

Shares
Demal Physical Total %o, Total

Shares
c) Others

Clearino Member 19350 NIL 19350 0.0490 237101 NIL 237101 0.60't 0 1125.pp
. NBI 280557 176350 456907 1 .'1582 3'1180'l 175850 4f17651 1.2361 6.7247
- Trusts NIL NIL NIL NIL 3s00 NIL 3500 0.0089 100.mm

NBFCs registered
with RBI NIL NIL NIL NIL . 28949 NIL 28949 0.07u 100.00m

Sub-total (BX2):- 36310319 294865r 392592m 99.5164 36325849 2ql3351 392592m 99.5163 NIL
Toial Public Shareholding
(B)E(BXl)+(BX2) 35311098 2949901 3926Gm 99.5210 36326398 293/t5Ol 3925$99 99.5209 NIL

C. Shares held by Custodian
for GDFIS & ADRs NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Grand Total{A+B+C) 3550m99 2949901 394s(nX) t 00.0000 35s1s3!Xt 2934601 3945(xDo 100_0000 NIL

(ii) Sha.eholding of Promoters :

sl.
No.

Sharcholders Name Shareholding atthe
beginning orthe year

Shareholding atthe
end ol the year

o/o chaflge
in share
holding

during the
year

No. ot
shares

o/. of total
shares
of the

company

06otshares
pledged/

encumberd
lo lotal
shares

No. ot
shares

o/" ot total
shares
ot the

company

o/o ot shares
pledged/

encumbered
lo total
shares

1 Santosh Kumar Jain 45950 0.1 165 NIL 45950 0.1 165 NIL NIL

2 Lalita Jain 34133 0.0865 NIL 34133 0.0865 NIL NIL

Arihanl Jain 8770 0.0222 NIL 8770 o.0222 NIL NIL

4 Silicon Valley lntotech Ltd. 77607 0.1967 NIL 77607 0.1967 NIL NIL

5 Blue Chip lndia Lld. 22441 0.0569 NIL 22441 0.0569 NIL NIL

6 Savera Traders Ltd. 100 0.0003 NIL 100 0.0003 NIL NIL

TOTAL 189001 0.4791 NIL 189001 0.4791 NIL NIL

(iii) Change in Promoters' Shareholding ( please speclfy, It there is no change) :

st.
No.

Share holdlng atthe
beginning of the year

Cumulalive Share holding
during the year

No. ot
shares

% ot total
shares ot

the company

No. ol
shares

o/o of total
sharcs ot

the company

At the beginning of the year N-A. N.A. N.A. N.A.

Date wise lncrease/ Decrease in Promoters
Share holding during lhe year specitying the
reasons for increase/decrease (e.9. allotmenv
transler/bonus/ sweat equity etc) N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.

At the End oI the year N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
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st.
No.

For Each of the Top 1O
Shareholders

Shareholding at the
beglnning of the year

Date Reason lncreas€rDecrease in
Shareholding

Cumulative shar6hol-
dlng during the year

No. ol
Shares

% of total
shares of

the
Company

No- of
Shares

0/6 ol total
shares of

the
Company

No. ol
Shares

o/" ot tolal
shares ot

the
Company

Flohit Barjatya 225900 o.5726 2259n0 o.57

31.03.2016 Transfer 2fi 0.0006 2ffi 0.5720

31.03.2016 Attheend
ofthe year

2W 0.5720

2 lvlanishJain 237ffi 0.6020 237ffi 0.6020

3. Herald Commerce Limited 92A228 2.3529 92424 2.35m

4. Hanurang Proiects
Private Limited 295410 o.748€ ng10 0.748a

5. Shri Parasram Holdings
Limited# 22722a 0.5760 22724 0.5760

30.06.2015 Transfer 18821 0.un 2460{9 o.6237

07.08.2015 Transfer 4577 0.0116 241472 0.6121

30.09.201s Transfer 944'l 0.0239 2320ts1 0.5882

31.12.20't5 Transfer 2&2 0.0061 2A4X 0.5943

31.03.2016 Transfer 49600 o.1257 .'184833 0.4685

31.03.2016 At the end

ol the year

't84833 0.46&5

6. Bahubali Properties

Limited 329501 0.8352 329501 0.8352

7. Master Capital Services
Limited# 310415 0.7869 310415 0.7869

30.06.201s Transfer 99175 0.2514 211240 0.5355

30.09.2015 Transler 204539 0.5185 6701 0.0170

31.12.2015 Transfer 1800 0.0046 490'l 0.0124

31.03.2016 Transfer s00 0.00'13 4401 o.o112

31.03.2016 Attheend
of the year

4&1 0.0112

8. Amluckie lnvestment

Company Limiled 380410 0.9&13 380410 O.9BB

(iv) Shareholding Pattern ot top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs
and ADRs) :
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(iv) Shareholding Pauern of top ten Shareholders (other than Direclors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs
and ADRS) (Contd.) |

' Not in the list of Top 10 shareholders as on 01.04.20'15. The same has been reflected above since the shareholder was one of the
Top 10 shareholders as on 31.03.2016.

* Ceased to be in the list of Top 10 shareholders as on 31.03.2016. The same is retlecled above since the shareholder was one of
the Top '10 shareholders as on 01.04.2015.

sl.
No.

For Each of the Top 10
Shareholders

Shareholding at lhe
beginning ot the year

Date Reason lncreasdDecrease in
Shareholding

Cumulatlve sharehol-
ding during the year

No. of
Shares

% ot total
shares ot

the
Company

No. ol
Shares

7o ot total
shares of

the
Company

No. ot
Sharcs

% of total
shares o,

the
Company

9. SplendorPowerLimited' 0 0 0 0

31.03.2016 Transfer 3't9734 0.8105 3'1973/. 0.8105

31.03.2016 Atthe end

ofthe year
319734 0.8105

'10. Flamesh Kumari' 15084 0.0382 15084 0.0382

30.09.2015 Transfer 220239 0.5076 215323 0.5458

31.03.2016 At lhe end
ofthe year

215323 0.5458

11 VeekasJain* 213r'8,3 0.5411 213/43 0.5411

31.03.2016 Transler 100000 0.253s 1'13483 o.2877

31.03.2016 At the end

of the year
1 13,183 o.2e 7

12 Sudha Shah 239935 0.6082 239935 0.6082

13. Paras Chandrakant

Shah* 16001 0.0406 16m1 0.0406

30.06.2015 Transfer 24460 0.0620 40461 0.1026

07.08.20't5 Transter 82958 0.21m 123/19 0.3128

30.09.2015 Transfer 8t,188 o.235 211ffi7 0.5364

31.03.2016 Transfer 21160 0.0536 1W447 0.48,2A

31.03.2016 Atthe end

ofthe year
1gM7 0.4828
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st.
No.

Name ol Shareholder Share holding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulatlve Sharc holding
during the year

No. of
shares

70 of total
shares ol

the company

No. ol
shares

o/o of toial
sharcs of

the company

SANTOSH KUMAH JAIN- Managing Director

At the beginning of the year 45950 0.1 165 45950 0.1165

Date wise lncrease / Decrease in Share
holding during the year NIL NIL NIL NIL

At the End of the year 4s950 0.1165

Note : ln addition to above, no other Director and KMp is holding any shares in the Company

(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial personnel :

V. INOEBTEDNESS

lndebtedness ol the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment :

Secured Loans
excluding
deposits

Unsecured
Loans

Oeposits Total
lndebtedness

lndebtedness at the beginning of the financial year

i) Principal Amount 93,500,000.00 NIL NIL 93,500,000.00

ii) lnterest due but not paid NIL NIL NIL NIL

iii) lnterest accrued bul not due NIL NIL NIL NIL

Total (i+ii+iii) 93,500,000.00 NIL NIL 93,s00,000.00

Change in lndebtedness during the financial year

. Addition NIL NIL NIL NIL

. Beduction NIL NIL NIL NIL

Net Change NIL NIL NIL NIL

lndebtedness at the end of lhe financial year

i) Principal Amount 93,500,000.00 NIL NIL 93,500,000.00

ii) lnterest due but not paid NIL NIL NIL NIL

iii) lnterest accrued but not due NIL NIL NIL NIL

Total (i+ii+iii) 93,500,000.00 NIL NIL 93,500,000.00
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VI. REMUNEBATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors ancuor Manager :

st.
Ng.

Particulars ol Remuneration Name ol Managing
Dlrector/WTo/Manager

Total
Amount
(8s.)Santosh Kumar Jain -

Managing Director

1 Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section '17('l) of

the lncome-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) lncome-tax Acl, 1961
(c) Prolits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) lncome- tax

Act, 1961

NIL
NIL

NIL

NIL
NIL

NIL

2 Stock Option NIL NIL

3. Sweat Equity NIL NIL

4 Commission
- .as o/o of Profit
- others, specily... NIL NIL

Others, please specily NIL NIL

Total (A) NIL NIL

Ceiling as per the Act N.A

B. Remuneration to other directors :

st.
No.

Particulars ol Remuneration Name ol Directors Total
Amounl

Pranab
Chalraborly -
lndependent

Director

Taral Nath
Datta -

lndependent
Director

Krishna
Baneriee -

Non-Executive
Director

adhu
Bamwal -

lndependent
Director

l,liladri Eihari
Baril -

Non-Executive
Director .

1. lndependent Directors

. Fee for attending board
committee meetings NIL NIL NIL NIL

Commission NIL NIL NIL NIL

. Others, please specity NIL NIL NIL NIL

Total (1) NIL NIL NIL NIL

2. Other Non-Executive Directors

. Fee lor attending board
committee meetings NIL NIL NIL

. Commission NIL NIL NIL

. Others, please specify NIL NIL NIL

Total (2) NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Toral (B) = (1 + 2) NIL

Total Managerial Remuneralion NIL

Overall Ceiling as per the Act N.A.
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s!.
No.

Particulars ol Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel Total
(Rs.)

Manisha Lath -
Company
Secretary

Sandeep Dey -
cFo

Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions conlained in section

17(1) ol rhe lncome Tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of lhe lncome
Tax Act, 196'1

(c ) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3)
of the lncome Tax Act, 1961

340,730.00

NIL

NIL

245,571.00

NIL

NIL

586,301.00

NIL

NIL

2 Slock option NIL NIL NIL

3 Sweat Equily NIL NIL NIL

4 Commission
- as "/. ol profit
- others (specily)

NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL

5 Others, please specify NIL NIL NIL

Total 340,730.00 245,571.O0 586,301.00

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER ]HAN MD/MANAGERAII/TD :

VII. PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES :

Type Section ot the
Companies Act

Briel
Description

Details of
Penalty/

PunishmenU
Compounding
lees lmposed

Authority
(RD/ NCLT/

Court).

Appeal made
it any

(give details)

A. COMPANY

Penalty

NILPunishment

Compounding

B. DIRECTORS

Penalty

NILPunishment

Compounding

C. OTHER OFFICER IN DEFAULT

Penalty

NILPunishment

Compounding

25

t:



ATN INTERNATIONAL LIMITED Annual Heport 2015-16

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company's shares are listed in National Stock Exchange, Bombay Stock Exchange and Calcutta Stock Exchange.
Accordingly, the Corporate Governance Beport for lhe year 2015-2016, has been prepared as per Clause 49 ol the Listing
Agreement upto 30.11.2015 and SEBI (Listing Obligatjons & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("Listing
Flegulations"/ "SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015") w.e.t 01.12.2015 j
PaTa 1. COBPORATE GOVERNANCE PHILOSOPHY

Effective Corporate Governance is how an organisation is managed, which includes its cullure, structure, policies and
manner in which it deals with its stakeholders and not just mere compliance. lt also relates to processes and systems that
direct lhe resources of the organization and stralegies of the management for maximizing the wealth ot the stakeholders.
Your Company tirmly believes that such practices are founded upon the core values of transparency, accountability,
independence. responsibility and fairness.

Your Company makes bbst endeavor to implement these core values in all ,acets of its operations. The Company continues
to tollow procedures and practices in conformity with the Code of Corporate Govemance enshrined in the Listing Agreement.

Para 2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

(i) Composition ol the Board :

The Composition of the Board of Directors of the Company consists of qualilied executive and non-executive Directors. The
Board comprises ol persons who have excelled in their respective areas and have good standing. All the Direclors are
above lhe age of 2'1 years.

The composition ot the Board ol Directors as on 3'lst March, 2016 is given below :

Sr.
No.

Name ol Director Executive/
Non-Execulive

I'lo- of other

Directorships(+) Committee(++)

Chairman Member

1 Shri Santosh Kumar Jain -
Managing Director

Promoter-
Executive

2 4

2 Shri Pranab Chakraborty Non-Executive &
lndependent

2 2

3 Shri Tarak Nath Datta Non-Executive &
lndependent

4 Smt. Krishna Banerjee Non-Executive

5 Smt. Madhu Barnwal* Non-Execulive &
lndependent 7

6 Shri Niladri Bihari Barik' Non-Executive

* Smt. Madhu Barnwal & Shri Niladri Bihari Barik were appointed by Board on August 13,2015.

(+) Excluding directorship held in private limiled/loreign companies and Companies registered under Section I
ol Companies Act, 2013.

(++) Flepresents Chairmanship / Membership ol lhe Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee
of other companies, in which they are Director.
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(ii) The attendance ot the Directors at the Board me€tings and the last AGM held are given below :.

Name of the Director No. of Meetings Attendance at lasl
AGM - held on

24lh September, 2015Held Attended

Shri Santosh Kuinar Jain - Managing Direclor 5 Yes

Shri Pranab Chakraborty 5 Yes

Shri Tarak Nath Datta 5 5 Yes

Smt. Krishna Banerjee 5 4 Yes

Smt. Madhu Barnwal Ves

Shri Niladri Bihari Barik Yes

Particulars of the Directors to be re-appointed at the ensuing Annual General Meeting pursuant to Hegulation 36(3) of
SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 is given in the Notice of 32nd Annual General Meeting of the Company.

(iii) Directors' membership in board/committees of other companies

As per the Listing Begulations, no director can be a Member in more than 1O (ten) committees or act as chairman ol
more than s(five) commitlees across all companies in which he is a Direclor.

ln terms oI the Listing Flegulations, none o, the directors ol your Company were Members in more than lO (ten)

commitlees nor acted as chairman ol more than 5 (five) committees across all companies in which they were Directors.

Details ol other directorships/committee membership/chairmanship held by them are given in Para 2(i) above.

(iv) Number ot Board meetings held, dates on which held :

As per the Listing Regulalions, the Board of Directors must meet at least four times a year, with a. maximum time gap

of one hundred and twenty days between any two meetings.

During the financial year 2015-2016, Board met 5 (Five) limes on 23.O4.2015, 28.A5.2015, 13.08.2015, 12.11.2015,

11.02.2016. The gap between any lwo Board Meelings did not exceed one hundred and twenty days.

(v) Familiarisation Programme for Directors :

The Company familiarizes its lndependent Directors with their roles, rights, responsibilities in the Company, nalure of

the industry in which the Company operates, business model of the Company, etc., through programme in compliance

of Lisling Regulations.

The Familiarisation programme for lndependent Directors is disclosed on the Company's websile at the following web

link: www.atninlernational.co.in

(vi) lndependent Directors' Meeting :

During the year under review, a separate meeting ol lndependent Directors ot the Company, wilhout lhe allendance

of Non-lndependent Directors and members of the Management, was held on 'l2th November, 2015 as required under

Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations. All lndependent Directors were presenl at lhe meeting to review the
performance of Non-lndependenl Direclors and the Board as a whole, assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of

27

t:



ATN INTERNATIONAL LIMITED Annual Report 201$16

flow of inlormation between the Company Management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to etfectively
and reasonably perlorm their duties and discuss matlers pertaining to the Company's atfairs and functioning ol lhe
Board and presented their views to the Managing Director for appropriate action.

Para 3. AUDIT COMMITTEE

Briel descrlplion ot lhe terms ol reterence :

The terms ol reference of the Audit Committee cover lhe matters specilied under Part C of Schedule ll ot the SEBI

(LODR) Regulalions, 2015 and provisions oI Section 177 ot lhe Companies Act, 2013 read wilh The Companies
(Meelings ol Board and its Powers) Rules, 20'14.

The Audit Committee reviews, acts and reports to the Board of Directors with respect to:

a) lhe appointment ot Stalutory Auditors of the Company,

b) review and approval ol related party transactions,

c) provide Board with additional assurance as to reliability ot financial inlormation and statulory financial slatemenls

and as to the adequacy of internal accounting and control systems,

d) it acts as a link between the management, statutory auditors and the Board ol Directors,

e) Company's compliance with the legal and statutory requirements,

f) Such other matters resulting ,rom statutory amendments/moditications lrom time to time.

(i) Compositlon and Name of members :

The Audit Committee, presently, comprises ol 2 (two) lndependent Members. The following directors are the present

Members.of the Committee :

All the Members o, the Audit Committee are financially literate and Shri Pranab Chakraborty, Chairman posses financial/

accounting expedise. Smt. Manisha Lath, Company Secretary acts as the Secrelary to lhe Audil Committee.

(ii) Meetings held and attendance during the year:

During the financial year 2015-2016, the Audit Committee met 5 (Five) times on 22.04.2015, 27.05.2015, 12.08.2015,

10.1'1.2015 and 10.02.20'16,

Sr. No- Members ot Audit Committee No. ot meetlngs held No. of meetings attended

1 Shri Pranab Chakraborty 5 5

2 Shri Tarak Nath Datta 5 5

3 Shri Sanlosh Kumar Jain 5 5
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Name ol the Members Designation Nature ot Membership

Shri Pranab Chakraborty Chairman Non Executive & lndependent

Shri Tarak Nath Datta Member Non Executive & lndependent

Shri Santosh Kumar Jain Member Executive

t:



ATN INTERNATIONAL LIMITED Annual Report 201$16

Pars 4. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Brief descrlption ol the terms of reterence :

The lerms ol reference of lhe Nomination & Remuneration Committee cover the matters specified under Part D of

Schedule ll of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and provisions of Section 178 ol the Companies Act, 2013. The

Committee is primarily responsible for :

a) Formulalion ol the criteria for determining qualilications, positive attributes and independence ol a director

and recommend to the Board of Directors a policy relating to, the remuneration o, the directors, KMP and other

employees.

b) Formulate the criteria for performance evaluation of independenl direclors and the Board ol directors.

c) Devise a policy on Diversity ol Board of Directors.

d) Such other matters resulting from statutory amendments/modif ications lrom time to lime.

The Company has adopted a Remuneration Policy for its Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees.
This Policy has also laid down the criteria for determining qualilications, positive attributes, independence ol Director
and Board diversity and criteiia for evaluation of Board and individual Directors. Details of Bemuneration Policy is
provided in Para 4 (iv) and has also been uploaded on the website ot the Company.

(i) Composition and Name ot members :

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee. presently, comprises of 3(Three) Non-Executive directors, 2 (iwo) oI whom

are lndependent Directors. The Chairman ol the Committee is an lndependent Director. The following directors are the
presenl Members of the Committee.

Name of the Members Oesignation Nature of Membership

Shri Tarak Nath Datta Chairman Non Executive & lndependent

Shri Pranab Chakrabody Member Non Execulive & lndependent

Smt. Krishna Banerjee Member Non Executive

(ii) Meetings held and attendance during the year :

During the financial year 2015-2016, the Nomination & Flemuneration Committee met on 1 1 .08.2015.

(lli) The details ot remuneration/sitting Iee paid to Directors :

No remuoeration/sitting fee has been pald to any Director during the year.
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Name ot the Members No. ol meetings held No. ol meetings attended

Shri Tarak Nath Datta ,l
1

Shri Pranab Chakraborly ,1 ,l

Smt. Krishna Banerjee 1 1
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(iv) Criteria tor selection and appointment ot Directors and Remuneration Policy :

Preamble

. The remuneration policy provides a framework for remuneration paid lo the members ol lhe Board oI Directors

(Board) and for Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and other employees. The expression KMP shall have the

same meaning as defined under Companies Act, 2013. This policy also provides a lramework for indentilication

ol persons who are qualilied to become directors and who may be appointed as senior management for

recommendalion ol their appointment to the Board.

. This policy has been framed by lhe Nomination and Flemuneration Committee o, lhe Board of Directors and

based on its recommendation, approved by the board of directors of the Company.

. The policy may be reviewed by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee o, the Board o, Directors.

Criteria lor determining qualitication

The Board may expects qualilied directors to have ample experience and the highest level of personal and prolessional

ethics, integrity and values. The Board shall also consider whether each director possesses the folloriving :

. The highest level o, personal and prolessional ethics. reputation, integrity and values;

. A person should possess adequate qualification, expertise and experience lor the position he / she is considered

lor appointment. The Committee has discretion to decide whether qualification, expertise and experience

possessed by a person is sutticienl / satisfactory for the concerned position.

. The ability to exercise objectivity and independence in making inlormed business decisions;

. The willingness and commitment to devote exlensive time necessary to rulfill his/her duties;

. The ability to communicate effectively and collaborate with other board members to contribute eftectively to the

diversity of perspectives that enhances Board and Committee deliberations, including a willingness to listen and

respect the views ol others:

. 
. The skills, knowledge and expertise relevant to the Company's business.

lndependence Review Criteria

Delermination ol direclor independence will be made by the Board lor each director on an annual basis upon the

recommendation of the Committee. lndependent directors have three key roles, namely, governance, conlrol and guidance.

Some oi lhe performance indicators, based on which the independent directors shall be evaluated are:-

. lndependence irom management.

. lndependence from Promoter Group.

. No substantial shareholding.

. Ability to contribute to and monitor our corporate governance practices.

. Ability to contribute by introducing international best practices to address top management issues.

. Active participation in long term strategic planning.

. Commitment to the Iultilment of a director obligaiions and fiduciary responsibiliiies - this include pariicipation and

attendance.

. Other signilicant relationship which may cause a contlict ol interest.
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I

Principles of Remuneration

Company considers that the remuneration system is a key element in creating value. lt thus has an advanced remuneration
scheme based on the reciprocity of value for employees and for the Company in line with the intereats of shareholders.
The Company's remuneration system is inlormed by the following principles:

. Long-term value creation.

. Remunerate lachievement of results on the basis of prudent, responsible risk bearing.

. Attract and retain the best prolessionals.

. Beward the level of responsibility and professional path.

. Ensure equity in the Company and competitiveness oulside it.

. Ensure transparency in its remuneration policy

Remuneration to Non-Executive Directors

Non Executive directors may be paid remuneration by way of sitting fees and reimbursement of expenses tor participation

in the Board and other meetings and such olher payments as may be approved by the Board ol Directors within the
overall limits prescribed undei the Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies (Appointment and Bemuneration oI
Managerial Personnel) Bules, 2014.

Remuneration to Executive Directors

At the time of appointment or re-appointment, the Managing Director shall be paid such remuneration as may be mutually

agreed between the Company and the Managing Director within the overall limits prescribed under lhe Companies Act,
20'13. The remuneration shall be subjecl to the approval of the Members of the Company in General Meeting.

Remuneration to other Key Managerial Personnel excluding Executive Director & other employees

Olher Key Managerial Personnel excluding Executive Director and other employees shall be paid such remuneration as
per term and condition of appointment letter/contract within the range approved by and ratilied by the Remuneration

Committee, Annual increments effective 1st April each year, as recommended by the Bemuneration Committee, shall be

approved by lhe Board.

Evaluation ol lndividual Directors & Board

The lndependent Directors shall have a separate meeting during the year without the attendance of Non-lndependent

Directors and members of managemenl. All lndependent Directors shall strive to be present at the meeting. The meeting

shall review the performance of Non-lndependent Directors and the Board as a whole. The meeting shall also review

lhe performance of the Chairman, if any of the Company. taking into account the views of the Executive Oireclors and the

Non-Executive Directors.

The performance evaluation of the lndependent Directors shall be done by lhe entire Board, excluding the Director being

evaluated. The performance evalualion of the lndependent Directors and the Board as a whole shall be in contexl ol the

Company's performance and governance perspective,

Criteria for Performance Evalualion are as under :

For Board -

. degree ol fullillment of key responsibilities
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. Composition

. Committees oI Board

. Board & Committee Meetings

. Team work

. understanding the role

. ellectiveness and quality ol decision making

For Dlrectors -

. attendance at the meeting

. participation and contribution

. responsibilitytowards Stakeholders

. compliance and governance

. mainlainingconfidentiality

ln addition to the above Minaging Director also being evatuated on -

. teadership

. relationships

. communication

. conduct of meeting

. utilization of resources

Commilte€ -

. degree of lulfillment of key responsibilities

. adequacy ol committee composition

. relationship

. communication

. understanding of regulatory environment

. interaction with the Board

AIIIENDMENTS TO THIS POLICY

This Policy may be amended or substituted by Nomination & Remuneration Committee or by the Board as and when

required and also by the Compliance Otficer where lhere is any statutory changes necessitating the change in the policy.

PATa 5. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

Briel description of the terms of reterence :

The terms ol relerence of the Stakeholders Belationship Committee covgr the matters specified under Part D of Schedule

ll ol the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and provisions ol Seclion 178 ol lhe Companies Act, 2013. The board ol Directors

ol the Compdny has delegated the authority lo approve transler of shares to Stakeholders Relationship Committee of the
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Company. The Committee also monitors the implementalion and compliance with lhe Company's Code ot Conduct for
prohibition of lnsider Trading. The committee deals with the various matters relating to :

a. Transfer of shares

b. Transmission of shares

c. lssuance ol duplicate share certificates.

d. Shareholders' queries/complaints and its redressal as and when received

e. Dematerialisation/Rematerialisation of shares

f. Monitors expeditious redressal of investors' grievances.

g. Such other matters resulting from statutory amendmentymodifications from time to time.

The Company has adopted the Code of Conduct for Prevention oI lnsider Trading, under the SEBI (Prohibition of lnsider
Trading) Regulations. The Code lays down guidelines for procedures to be lollowed and disclosures to be made while
dealing with the shares of the Company by the directors and designated employees. Shri Santosh Kumar Jain, Managing
Director has been appointed as the Compliance Otficer for the implementation ot and overseeing compliance with the
Regulations and the Code acrpss the Company.

The Company has also adopled the Code of Corporate Disclosure Practices lor ensuring timely and adequate disclosure

of Price Sensitive lnfolmation, as required under the Begulations. The Companyias also adopted the Code of Corporate

Disclosure Praclices for ensuring timely and adequate disclosure of Price Sensitive lnformation, as required under the
Flegulations.

(i) Compositlon and name ot the Members :

The Committee is being headed by Shri Pranab Chakraborty, a Non- Executive Independent Director. The Committee
compnses ot lhe tollowing persons;

Name ol the Members Designation Nature ot Membership

Shri Pranab Chakraborty Chairman lndependent & Non Executive

Shri Santosh Kumar Jain Member Execulive

Shri Tarak Nath Datta Member lndependent & Non Executive

(ii) Meetings held and attendance during the year :

During the financial year 2015-2016, the Stakeholders Relationship Commiltee met 4(Fou0 times on 23.04.2015,
10.09.2015, 02.11.2015 and 03.03.2016.

Members of Stakeholders
Relatlonship Committee

No, ot meetings held No. of meetlngs attended

Shri Pranab Chakraborty 4 4

Shri Santosh Kumar Jain 4 4

Shri Tarak Nath Datta 4 4
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(ii) Name and designation ot compliance ofticer :

As per the requirements ol the Listing AgreemenuListing Regulalions, Smt. Manisha Lath, Company Secretary acts as
the Compliance Oificer lill 1sth November, 2015 and thereafter, Smt. Krishna Banerjee, Oirector was designated as
the Compliance Otficer.

(iii) to (iv) Detalls ol ihe shareholders' complaints received and resolved during the year 2Ol5-16:

.!l-o. ol complaints received No. ot complaints.resolved Pending

Nil Nit Nit

There have been no material grievances raised and all items relerred have been dealt with.

As on 31st March,2016, there were no pending complaints.

Para 6. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

(i) Location and Time ol last three Annuat ceneral Meeting (AGM) :

The location and time of the last three AGMS are as follows:

Year Date Place Time

2014-15 24.09.2015 Rolary Sadan 94/2 Chowringhee Road
Kolkata-700020

2.30 P.M.

20't 3-14 22.O9.20'14 Rotary Sadan 94/2 Chowringhee Road
Kolkata-700020

10.00 A.M.

2012-13 19.09.2013 Rotary Sadan 94/2 Chowringhee Road
Kolkata-700020

10.00 A.M-

(ii) Oetails ol speclal resolutions passed in the prevtous three AGMS :

No special resolution has been passed in the previous three AGMS.

(iil) Special re-solution passed during the linancial year 2015-2016 through the Postal ballot :

No special resolution was passed through postal ballot during lhe linancial year 2O'15-2016.

(iv) Postal ballot during the currenl year : .

For the financial yeat 2016-17, il resolutions are to be conducted ihrough lhe Postal Ballot procedure, those will be
taken up at the appropriate time.

Para 7. DISCLOSURES

(i) Dlsclosure ot materially slEnlticant related party lransactions :

During the tinancial year 2015-2016, the Company had nol entered i;to any materially significant transaction with any
related party that may have potential conrlict with the interesls of the Company at large. The Directors and KMPS have
no direct, indirecl or on behall of third party, material interest in any lransaction or matter directly affeciing the compani:
The Omnibus approval of the Audit Committee is taken lor all proposgd Felated Party Transaclions. The lransactions
with related parties, in normal course ol business, have been disclosed separalely in the Notes on Accounts.

The Policy on related Party transaclions has been uploaded on Company's websile : www.atninternational.co.in.

(ii) Accountlng treatmeni :

ln view ol the management, all applicable accounting standards are being followed lor preparation of linancial statements.
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(iii) Details of non-compliance by the company :

The Company has complied with all the requirements of the Listing Agreemenl with Stock Exchange as well as the
Regulalions and Guidelines prescribed by Securities and Exchange Board ol lndia (SEBI). No penalties or strictures
have been imposed by Stock Exchange, SEBI or any other statutory authority, on any matter relating to capital markels,
during last three years.

(iv) Whistle Blower Policy :

The Company has adopted a Whislle Blower Policy, to provide a lormal mechanism to the Directors and employees to
report their concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected traud or violation ol the Company's Code ol Conduct
or ethics policy. The Policy provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of employees who avail ol lhe
mechanism and also provides lor direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. ll is atlirmed lhai no personnel
of the Company has been denied access to the Audit Committee.

(v) Disclosures regarding webllnk ot the Company :

Dunng the year ended 31sl March, 2016, the Company does nol have any material listed/unlisted subsidiary companies
as defined in Listing Regulations, therefore the Company has not lormed as of now any such policy on Material
Subsidiaries.

Polrcy on dealing with relaled party transaclions are posted on the Company's website at www.atninlernational.co.in

(vi) Commodity price risk or foreign exchange rlsk and hedglng actlvlties :

The Company did not engage in the commodity hedging activities during the year under review.

(vii) Non-compliance ol any requirement ol Corporate Governance Report :

There has been no such non compliance of any requirement of Qorporate Governance Report.

(viii) Details of compliance with the mandatory requirements :

Your Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of the Listing Regulations. The details ol these
compliances have been given in the relevant sections of this Report.

(ix) Contirmation :

The Company has Iully complied with the Applicable requirements specilied under Begulation '17 lo 27 and clause (b)
to (i) of Sub regulation (2) o, Hegulation 46 ot SEBI (LODR) Regutarions,.2015.

(x) Demat Suspense accounUunclaimed suspense account :

None ol shares of the company are lying in the demat suspense account or unclaimed suspense account.

Para 8. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

(i) Ouaiterly results ;

The Quarterly and.Annual Results ol the Company are communicated immediately to the stock exchanges upon
conclusion ol the Board Meeting convened to consider the same.

(ii) Newspapers vyherein results are normally published :

The Financial Results of the Company are published in "Business Standard'and in "Dainik Lipi".

(iii) Any website, where dlsplayed :

The Results are displayed on the Company's web-site at www.atninternational.co.in.

Full Annual Reports lor lhe financial year 2015-20'16, Financial resulls, Shareholding pattern and other relevanl
information are also available on the website o, the company in a user-triendly and downloadable ,orm.
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(lv) Official news rcleases and presentation to institutional investors/analysts :

During the year under review there were no such news releases and no presenlation was made to institutional investor

or to the analysts.

(v) Scores :

The Company has registered itsell on SCOBES and endeavors to resolve all invesior complaints received through

SCORES or olherwise wilhin stipulaled time period.

Para L GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

(D AGM : Oate, time and venue :

The lorthcoming Annual General Meeiing ol the Company will be held as given below :

Date & Time 26lh September, 2016 al 9.30 A.M.

Venue Botary Sadan,
94/2, Chowringhee Road, Kolkata - 700 020

(i0 Financial year:

Financial Year is 1st April, 2016 to 3'1st March, 2017 and the quarterly results will be declared as per the lollowing
schedule:

Tentative Schedule

Financial Besults lor the quarter ending June 30, 2016 Second week ol August 2016

Financial Results for the quarter ending Seplember 30, 2016 second week oI November 20'16

Financial Results for the quarter ending December 31, 2016 Second week of February 2016

Financial Results tor the year ending March 31 , 20'17 End o, May 2017

AGM for the year ending March 31, 2017 End o, September 2017

(ili) Date of Book closure :

The Company's Register of Members and Share Transrer Books will remain closed from Tuesday, 2oth September,

2016 lo Monday,26th September,2016 (both days inclusive).

(iv) Dividend Payment Date :

No dividend has been recommended by the Board lor the year under review.

(v) Listing on Stock Exchanges :

Your Company's shares are listed on the tollowing stock exchanges as on 31st March, 2016.

1. National Stock Exchange of lndia Limited

Exchange Plaza, slh FIoor,

Plot No.C/1, G Block,

Bandra-Kurla Complex,
Bandra'(E), Mumbai 400 051.
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2. BSE Limited
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers,
Dalal Streel,
Mumbai 400 00'1.

3. The Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited
7, Lyons Bange,

Kolkara 700 001.

Listing rees for the tinancial yeat 2016-17 have been paid to Stock Exchanges.

(vi) 'Stock Code :

(vii) Market Price Data : High, Low during each month in the last financial year;

Months Bombay Stock Exchange (in Rs.) National Stock Exchange (in Rs.)

(201s-16) High Low High Lofl
April 0.3'l o.27 0.35 o.20

May 0.37 0.30 o_25 0.20

J une 0.40 0.37 0.30 0.20

July 0.38 0.34 0.40 0.25

August 0.39 o.32 0.45 0.30

September 0.37 0.33 0.35 o.25

Oclober 0.35 0.30 0.35 0.25

November 0.29 0.26 o.25 o.20

December 0.30 0.26 0.35 0.20

January 0.36 0.3'l 0.50 0.25

February 0.51 0.37 0.40 0.35

March 0.51 0.40 0.50 0.35

(viii) Begistrar and Transter Agents :

The Board has delegated the work of processing ot share transfers to Maheshwari Datamatics Private Limited, Begistrar
and Sharb Transfer Agents. Their complete address is as lollows:

37

Name ot the Exchange Code

BSE Limited 51'1427

The Calcutta Stock Exchange Lld. 100'l '1047

National Stock Exchange of tndia Ltd. ATNINTER

lnternational Securities ldenlilication Number (lSlN) 1NE803A01027
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Maheshwari Datamatics Private Limited

6, Mangoe Lane, 2nd Floor

Kolkata - 700 001.

Tel No. : (033) 2243-580912248-2248

Fax No. : (033) 2248-4787

Email : mdpldc@yahoo.com

(ix) Share Transfer System :

The transter of shares in physicat form is processed and completed by Maheshwari Datamatics Prrvate Limiled within

the statulory time period. ln case where shares are held in electronic lorm, the translers are processed by NSDUCDSL

through the Depository Participants and Registrars.

(x) Distribution ol Shareholding :

The distribution of shareholding as on 31sl March, 2016, pursuant to Regulation 31(1)(b) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations

& Disclosure Requirements) Begulations, 2015 is as under :

A. Shareholding Pattern of Equity Shares as on 31st March, 2016 :

Categories No. ol Shares held % ol Shareholding

A PROMOTERS & PROMOTER GROUP
1 lndian

a) lndividuals/Hindu Undivided Family
b) Bodies Corporate

88853
't 00148

0.2252
0.2539

Sub-total (A1) 189001 o.4791

2. Foreign NIL NIL

sub{oral (A2) NIL NIL

Total shareholding of Promoter &
Promoter Group A= (A)(1)+(AX2) 189001 0.4791

B PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING
,| lnstitutions

a) Financial lnstitulions / Banks 1 799 0.0046

Sub-total (B'1) 1799 0.0046

2. Non-lnstitutions
a) lndividuals
b) Bodies Corporate
c) Any Other

- Clearing Member
- Non-Resident lndividual
- Trusts

33757498
4773450

237101
48765'1

3500

85.5703
12.1000

0.6010
'1.2361

0.0089

sub-total (82). 39259200 99.5163

Total Public Shareholding B=(BX1)+(B)(2) 39260999 99.5209

GRAND TOTAL (A) + (B) 39450000 100.0000

Note : To'tal Foreign Shareholding is 487651 (1.2361 %)
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B. Distribution o, Equity Shareholding as on 31st March 2016 :

Share Holding Holders Percentage No. ot Shares Percentage

'1 to 500 17267 64.5544 3983740 10.0982

501 to 1 000 4256 15.9115 3842567 9.7403
'1001 to 2000 2263 8.4604 375151 1 9.5349

2001 to 3000 889 .r..rz.ro 2368826 6.0046

3001 ro 4000 368 1.3758 1354906 3.4345

4001 to 5000 556 2.O747 2708044 6.854s

5001 to 10000 678 2.5348 5293882 13.4192

10001 and above 471 1 .7609 1 6136524 40.9037

Grand Total 26748 100.0000 39450000 100.0000

(xi) Dematerialisalion ol shares and liquidity :

As on 31st March, 2016, 92.56 % of the tolal equity capital was held in dematerialized form with National Securities
Depository Limiled and Central Depository Services (lndia) Limited.

(xli) Outstanding GDBs/ADRs/Warrants or any Convertlble instrumenls :

As ol 31st March, 2016, there are no outstanding GDRs/ADHsMarrants or convertible instruments which are likely to
have an impact on the Equity Shares.

(xiii) Plant Locatlons :

The Company does not have any plant.

(xiv) Address for correspondence :

lnvestors' correspondence may be addressed to:-

1. The Compliance Ollicer
ATN lnternational Limiled
10, Princep Street,

2nd Floor,

Kolkata 700 072

Ph No. (033) 4oo2-28a0
Fax No. (033) 2237-9053
CIN : 16s993W81983P1C080793

2. Maheshwari Datamatics Private Limited
6, Mangoe Lane, 2nd Floor,

Kolkata - 700 001

Ph No. (033) 2243-5809/2248-2248
Fax No. (033) 2248-4787
E-mail : mdpldc @yahoo.com

(xv) E-mail lD oI the grievance redressal division / compliance officer exclusively for the purpose of registering

complaints by inveslors : info@ atninternational.co.in
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RECONCILIATION SHABE CAPITAL AUDIT :

The Company Secretary in practice carried out a Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit to reconcile the total admitted
equity share capital with the National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (lndia)
Limited (COSL) and the total issued/paid-up capital is in agreement with the total number of shares in physical lorm
and lhe total number of dematerialised shares held with NSDL and CDSL.

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS BEPORT :

The Management's Discussion and Analysis Report rorms parl of the Director,s Repon.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY :

The Company has rormulated a comprehensive Flisk Management Policy to reduce the inherent risk associated with
the business activities oI the Company but formation of Bisk'Management Committee is not applicable as per SEBI
Circular dated '17th April, 2014.

CODE OF CONDUCT :

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for its Direclors and Senior Management Personnel and the said code
is uploaded on the Company's website at www.atninternational.co.in.The Direclors and Senior Management Personnel
have aflirmed the compliance with the same for the financ'al year 2015-20'16. A declaration lo this elfect is given
below :

ANNUAL DECLARATION BY MANAGING DIRECTOR ON COOE OF CONDUCT PURSUANT TO PARA D OF
scHEouLE V OF THE SEB| (LODR) REGULATTONS, 201s

l, Santosh Kumar Jain, Managing Director ol ATN INTERNATIONAL LIMITED having its registered office at 10, Princep
Street, 2nd Floor, Kolkata - 7OO 072 hereby declare that all Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have
affirmed the compliance oI the Code for the ,inancial year 2015-2016.

Place : Kolkata

Datad : 30lh May,2016

For ATN lnternational Ltd.

Santosh Kumar Jain
Managing Director

DIN No. 00'174235
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AUDITORS' CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To the Members ol ATN lnternational Limited

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by ATN lnternational Limited ('the
Company') for the year ended on 31st March 2016, as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement of the
Company with stock exchanges for the period I st April, 2015 to 3oth November, 2015 and as per lhe relevant
regulations ot the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Bequirements) Regulations, 2015 ('Listing Regula-
tions") for the period 1st December, 2015 to 31st March, 2016.

The compliance of conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility of lhe management. Our examina-
tion was limited to procedures and implementation thereol, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compli-
ance of the conditions ol the Corporate Governance. lt is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the
,inancial statements ol the Company.

ln our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, w9 certify that
the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Govemance as slipulated in the above mentioned
Listing AgreemenvListing Regulations as applicable and no investor grievances are pending as on 31st March,
2016 against the Company as per the records maintained by the Company.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Place : Kolkata

Dated : 30th May, 2016

For SHAMBHU KEDIA & CO.
Chartered Accountants

S. K. KEDIA
Propietor

Membership No. 054042
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CERTIFICATION BY

MANAGING DIRECTOR AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

[Pursuant to Begulation 17(8) ot SEBI (LODR) Begulations, 2015]

We hereby certify that for the financial year, ending 31st March, 2016, on the:basis of the review of the financial
statements and the cash llow statemenl and to the best of our knowledge and belief that :-

a. We have reviewed linancial stalements and lhe cash flow statement for the year and that to lhe best
of their knowledge and beliel :

i. these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material lact or contain
slatements that might be misleading;

ii. these statements together present a true and fair view of the company's affairs and are in compliance
wlth exisling accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

b. To the best ol our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the company during the year

ended 31st March, 2016 which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the company's code of conduct.

c. We accept responsibility lor establishing and maintaining internal controls for linancial reporting and we
have evaluated the eflectiveness ol internal control systems of the company pertaining to financial
reporting and we have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or
operation of such internal controls, if any, ol which we are aware and the steps they have taken or
propose to take to rectify these deliciencies.

d. We have indicated, based on our most recent evaluation, wherever applicable, to the auditor and audit
committee.

i. There has not been any significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the
year under reference.

ii. There has not been significant changes in accounling policies during the year and that the same

have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and

iii. We are not aware of any instance during the year of significant fraud with involvement therein, of

the management or an employee having a significant role in the Company's internal control system

over financial reporting.

Place : Kolkata

Dated : 30th May,2016

Santosh Kumar Jain
Managing Director
DIN No.00174235

Sandeep Dey
Chief Financial Officer
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Management's Discussion and Anatysis Report

INOUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS

lnvestment business is the professional business of various securities (shares, bonds, etc.) and other assets
(e.9., real estate)' to meet specified investment goals for the benefit of investors. lnvestors may be institutions
(insurance companles, pension lunds, corporations etc.) or private investors (both direclly via investment contracts
and more commonly via collective investment schemes e.g., mufual funds).

lnvestment banking is one ol the most global industries and is hence continuously challenged to respond to new
developments and innovation in the global linancial markets.

OPPOBTUNITIES AND THREATS

OPPORTUNITIES:

Your Company has operations in equity investments. With the sensex touching its all time high and the upsurge in
financial sector the company is en route to a bright future. We shift our focus to external faclors when we look at
opportunilies. Here we try to identity areas of business we think the company is looking to enter, or should be
looking to enter. We also look for opportunities to gain market share from competitors, or grow the company,s
market to new customers.

Some opportunities to look for :

o Legal trouble for competitors

o Changes in regulatory / tax burdens

o Strategicinvestments

o lntemal efficiencies

o Technologicalinnovations

THREATS:

Finally, we need to consider threats to the company. Again, threats can be internal as well as external. ln fact, the
internal threats usually come first, which opens the doorto exlernalthreats. Theretore, it,s important to do a good
threat analysis.

Any internal problem is a threat to the company's well-being and should be evaluated alongside the external
threats.

Some possible threats are :

o lnternal obslacles the company is facing.

o Cash flow problems.

o The relative position o, the company,s largest competitors.

o Technological advances in the industry (if the company isn,t keeping pace).
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FUTUREOUTLOOK

Your Company intends to invest in businesses related to infrastructure, telecommunication, soft ware etc. in the

coming years since it sees good prospect in these areas. lt would definitely try to establish itself and remain as a

strong player in the investment industry. With the Capital market expected to be in a better mode than the previous

Iew years and wilh our eflorts we can look forward to a prosperous year for the company.

BECENTS

lnvestment banking is one ol the most global industries and is hence continuously challenged tQ respond to new

developments and innovation in the fastest growing segment of the investment banking industry are private

investments into public and private companies. Such transactions are privately negotiated between companies

and investors.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEOUACY

The Company has in place adequate internal control systems and procedures commensurate with the size and

nature of its business. These procedures are designed to ensure 1

. That all assets and resources are used efficiently and are adequately protected;

. That all internal policies and statutory guidelines are complied within letter & spirit;

. The accuracy and timing of financial reports and management information.

MATEBIAL DEVELOPMENT IN HUMAN RESCOURCES / INDUSTBIAL RELATIONS FRONT NUMBER OF

PEOPLE EMPLOYED

The Company believes that people are the key ingredient to the success of an organization. Looking after people

makes good business sense because, if people are motivated, service excellence willfollow. The relations remain

cordial throughout the year between employees and the management. The Company recognizes the importance

and contribution ol its Human resources for its groMh and development and is committed to the development of its

people.

FINANCIAL OPEBATIONAL PERFORMANCE

Please reler Boards'Report on performance review.

CAUTIONABY STATEMENT

Statement in the Management's Discussion and Analysis describing the Company's pro.iections estimates,

expectations or predictions may be forward looking predictions within the meaning of applicable securities laws and

regulations. These rorward-looking statements are based on certain assumptions and expectations ofluture evenls

over which the Company exercises no control. The Company cannot guarantee that these assumptions and

expectations are accurate or will be realized. Actual results may differ materially from such estimates, projections,

etc. whether expressed or implied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members ol ATN TNTERNATTONAL LTD.

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of ATN INTERNATIONAL LTD. (the Company"), which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31 , 2016, the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility lor the Financial Statemenls

The management and Board of Directors of the Company are responsible lor the matters stated in Section 134(5)
'of the Companies AGt, 201 3 ('the act') with respect to the preparation of ihese linancial statements that give a
true and fair view of the tinancial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in lndia, including the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 ol the Act, read with rule 7 of Companies (Accounts) Rules,2014. This responsibility includes
maintenance ol adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for sateguarding the
assets ol the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
ol appropriate accounting policies; making iudgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal linancial controls, that are operating effeitively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness ol the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation ol the
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free trom material misstatemenl, whether due to lraud
or error.

Auditor's Besponsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financiat statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which
are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing" specified under Seclion l43('10) of the Act.
Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the linancial statements are free trom material misstatement

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
Iinancial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment ol the
risks of material misstatement ol the linancial statemenls, whether due to traud or error. ln making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevanl to the Company's preparation ot the financial
stalemenls, that give a true and fair view, in ordgr to design audit procedures thal are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not torthe puryose of expressing an opinion on whetherthe Company has in place an adequate
inlernal financial controls system over financial reporting and the operating eflectiveness o, such controls An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness ol accounting policies used and the reasonableness ol the
accounting estimates made by the Company's management and Board of Directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis lor our audit
opinion.

Opinion

ln our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial"stalements give the inlormation required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair
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view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in lndia o, the state of affairs of the company
as at 3l st March, 2016, and its Loss and its cash flow for the year ended on that date.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw reference to :

I. STATEMENTOF PROFITAND LOSS:

During the year, the Company has not provided for

a) lnterest Bs. 94.50 Lakhs payable to Rural Electrification Corporalion Ltd (Refer Note No 4.A.2)

b) Diminution in value of lnvestments Rs_ '1028.81 Lakhs (Refer Note 9.1 )

c) Loss in value ol inoperative Wind Power Project the amount of loss not quantified by managements as
perAS - 28 and consequently the loss ofthe Company lorthe current year is understated & Reserve &
Surplus is overstated by the above amount & has its resultant effect in overstatement ol lnvestments,
Loans & Advances and understatement of Current Liabilities.

II. BALANCE SHEET

a) The Company is accounting interest payment on cash basis, which has resulted in accumulated interest
liability ol Rs. 1825.08 Lakhs to Rural Electrification Corporation Lid., As a resultant effect, Secured /
Unsecured Loans / Liabilities are understated to that extent.

Report on Other Legaland Regulatory Requirements

1 . As required by the Companies (Audito/s Report) Order, 2016 ("the Orde/') issued by the Central Government
of lndia in terms of sub-section (1 'l ) of sectionl43 ol the Act, we give in the Annexure "A" statement on the
matters Specilied in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we further report that :

a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best ol our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose ol our audit;

b) in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so lar as
appears from our examination of those books;

c) the Balance Sheel and Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the books ol account:

d) in our opinion, subject to Note No. 9.1 regarding valuation of investment, Note No. 4.A.2 regarding non-
provision of interest & Note No. 23 for non- provision of loss in value of wind power project; the aloresaid
financial statements comply with the applicable Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of
the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e) on the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31 , 2016, and taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31 , 2016, lrom being
appointed as a director in terms ot Section 164(2) of the Act.

0 With respect to the adequacy ol the internal financial controls over financial reportlng ol the Company
and the operating effectiveness ol such controls, referto ourseparate Report in "Annexure B"

g) ln ouropinion and to the bestof ourinformation and according to the explanations given lo us, we report
a's under with respect to other matters to be included in the Auditofs Reporl in accordance with Rule 1 1
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ol the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,20 t4:
i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which woutd impact its linancial position

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracls including derivative contracts; as such the
question ol commenting on any material loreseeable losses thereon does not arise

iil. There has not been an occasion in case of the Company during the year under report to transler
any sums to the lnvestor Education and Protection Fund. The question ol delay in transterring
such sums does not arise.

Place : Kolkata

Dated : 30th May, 2016

For SHAMBHU KEDIA & CO.
Chafiered Accountants

Firm Regn. No. 31901 1 E

S. K. KEDIA
Propietor

M. No. 054042

Annexure "A" : Relerred to in paragraph 1 under "Report on other Legal and Regulatory Bequirements" of Our
Beport o' even date to the members of ATN INTERNATIoNAL LTD lor the year ended 31st March,2o16,

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and according to the intormation and explanations
given to us during the course ol our audit, we report that :

i. (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantilative details
and situation of lixed assets :

(b) As explained to us, ,ixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year, at
regular intervals, which in our opinion is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the
nature of its tixed assets; as informed to us no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) The title deed ol lmmovable Properties are held in the name of the Company except title deed of
Office Premises of Bs. 9,57,880/- which is not available with the company.

ii. The Company does not have any inventory. Hence, the requirement ol clause (ii) of paragraph 3 of the said
Order is not applicable to the Company.

iii. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis ot our examination of books ol
accounls, the company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms or other
parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 ol the Companies Act, 2013.

iv. ln our opinion and according to the inlormation and explanations given to us, the company has complied
with the provisions ol Section 185 and 186 ol the Act in respect of grant of loans, making investments and
providing guarantees and securilies, as applicable.

v. ln view of matured outstanding deposits having been deposited in a separate account as per order of
Company Law Board, the Company has complied with the provisions ot the Companies Act, 2013 read
along with the rules lramed under the Non-Banking Financial Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 1998
as regards to the deposits accepted from public.

vi. As inlormed to us, the Central Government has not prescribed maintenance 9f cost records under sub-
section (1) ot Section 148 of the Act, in respect ol activities carried on by the company.

t:



ATN INTERNATIONAL LIMITED Annual Beport 2015-16

vii. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the records of the company,
the company has generally been regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues, including Provident
Fund, Employees'State lnsurance, lncome-tax, Sales{ax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty,
Excise Duty and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities. According
to the information and explanations given to us there were no outstanding Statutory dues as on 31st
March, 2016 for a period of more than six month from the date they become payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the records of the company

examined by us, there are no dues ol lncome Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Sales Tax, Customs

Duty and Excise Duty which have not been deposited on account of any disputes.

viii. According to the records ofthe company examined by us and as per the information and explanations
given to us, the company has not made payment against due to financial institutions amounting lo
Rs. 9,35,00,000/- and interest thereon, except Rs. 2,00,00,000/- paid as per courts directives, as the
matter is sub-iudice. The Company has outstanding debentures amounting to Rs 16.29 Lacs for which
amount has been deposited in a separate bank lixed deposit.

ix. The Company has not raised any moneys by way ol initial public offer or further public offer (including debl
instruments) and term loans during the year.

x. During the course of our examination of the books and records of the company, carried in accordance with
the auditing standards generally accepted in lndia, we have neither come across any instance of fraud on

or by the Company noticed or reported during the course of our audit nor have we been informed of any

such instance by the Management

xi. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the records of the company

examined by us, the company has complied with the provision related to managerial remuneration in
compliance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

xii. The Company is not a Nidhi Company, so the clause 3(xii) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

xiii. According to the information and explanations given and based on the records of the company examined

by us, the Company has made all transactions with the related parties in compliance with the section 177

and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable during the year and details have been disclosed in

the Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting standards;

xiv. According to lhe information and explanations given to us, the company has not made any preferential

allotmenl or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review.

xv. According to the intormation and explanations given to us, the company has not entered into any non-cash

transactions with directors or persons connected with him during the year under review.

xvi. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to be registered

under section 45-lA of the Reserve Bank of lndia Act, 1934.

Place : Kolkata

Dated : 30th May, 2016

For SHAMBHU KEDIA & CO.
Chaftered Accountants

Firm Reg. No. 31901 'l E

S. K. KEDIA

. hopietor
M. No. 054042
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Annexure "8" : Fleferred to in paragraph 2(f) under "Report on Olher Legal and Regulatory Requirements" of Our
Report of even date to the members ol ATN INTERNATIONAL LTD. lor the year ended 31st March, 2015.

Repon on the lnternal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 ot Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal linancial controls over financial reporting of ATN INTERNATIONAL LTD. ('the
Company') as of 31st March, 2016 in conjunction with our audit ot the financial statements ol the Company for
the year ended on that date.

Management's Besponsibility for lnternal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company, considering the essential
components ol internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of lnternal Financial Conirols over Financial
Reporting issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate intemal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct ol its business, including adherence 10 the Company's poticies, the safeguarding
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, lhe accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial intormation, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal Iinancial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of lnternal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, as specilied under
section 143(10) ol the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal linancial controls,
both applicable to an audit of lntemal Financial Controls and, both issued by the lnstitute of Cha(ered Accountants
of lndia. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance aboul whelher adequale internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated etfectively in all material
respects. Our audit involves perlorming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating efJectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal linancial controls over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment ol the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sutficient and appropriate to provide a basis lor our
audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning o, lnternal Financial Controls over Financial Reportlng

A company's internal linancial control over linancial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statemenls lor external
purposes-in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal linancial control
over linancial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance ol records
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that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
ol tinancial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors
of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition ot the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

lnherent Limitations of lnternal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because ol the inherent limitations of internal linancial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override ol controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and nol be detected. Also, projections ol any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting to Iuture periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may
become inadequale because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

ln our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal ,inancial controls over linancial reporting were operating effectively as at
March 31 , 2016, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company,
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of lnternal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants ol lndia.

Place : Ko.lkata

Dared : 30th May,20't6

For SHAMBHU KEDIA & CO.
Chafiered Accountants

Firm Reg. No. 319011E

S. K. KEDIA' 
Proprietor

M. No. 054042
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Balance Sheet
as at 31st March, 2016

Particulars Nole No.
As at 31st

March, 2016
As at 31st

March, 2015

(Rs) (RsJ

t.

(1)

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Shareholder's Funds
(a) Share Capital
(b) Reserves and Surplus

Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Long-TermBorrowings

(b) Defened Tax Liabilities (Net)

Current Liabilities
(a) Trade Payables
(b) 'Other Current Liabilities

(21

157,800,000

(112,712,121)

95,355,000

33,679

27,294,154

1 ,1 13,567

157,800,000

(108,109,449)

95,395,000

1,923,345

20,146,910

1 ,457,141

(3)

Total 168,8,l/.,279 168,612,946

II. ASSETS

(1) Non-Current Assets
Fixed Assets

Tangible Assets

Non-Current lnvestments

(2) Current Assets

Trade receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Short-term loans and advances

Other current assets

8

I

10

11

12
'13

15,622,015

123,169,524

66,438

567,881

22,674,765

6,783,656

16,637,103

123,159,573

54,080

514,787

21,799,499

6,447,903

Totdl 168,884,279 168,612,946

Significant Accounting Policies & Notes 1-25

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statement.

As per our Beport ol even date

For Shambhu Kedia & Co.
Chanered Accountants

Firm Regd. No. 31901 1 E
CA. S. K. Kedia

Propietor
Membership No. 054042

For ATN INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Place : Kolkata

Dated : 3bth May,2016
Sandeep Dey

cFo

Santosh Kumar Jain
Managing Dhector
DIN No.00174235

Pranab Chakraborty
Diector

DIN No. 03568360

51

t"



ATN INTERNATIONAL LIMITED Annual Report 2015-16

I

Statement of Profit and Loss
for the year ended 31st March, 2016

INCOME

IV

V

vt

vI
v t

tx

Place : Kolkata

Dated : 30th May,2016

52

Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2016 31st March,2015

Revenue from operations

Total Bevenue

EXPENDITURE

(i) Employee Benefit Expense
(ii) Depreciation and Amortization Expense
(iii) Other Expenses

Total Expenses

ProliV(Loss) before exceptional, extraordinary
items and tax (ll - lll)

Exceptional ltems

ProfiV(Loss) before Extraordinary ltems and Tax (lV- V)

Exlraordinary ltems

Profiu(Loss) before Tax (Vl - Vll)

Tax Expenses :

Delerred Tax

As per our Report of even date

For Shambhu Kedia & Co.
Chaftered Accountants

Firm Begd. No. 31901 1 E
CA. S. K. Kedia

Propietor
Membership No. 0 U2

For ATN INTEBNATIONAL LIMITED

Santosh Kumar Jain
Managing nhector
DIN No. 00174235

Pranab Chakraborty

Note No.

15

8
16

(Rs.)

787 ,387

787,387

3,440,823

1 ,147,591
3,1 11,481

7,699,895

(6,912,508)

(6,912,s08)

(420,171')

(6,492,337)

(1 ,889,666)

'14

(4,602,671) (1,038,171)

(RsJ

1 ,881 ,481

1,881,481

3,756,155

3,387 ,745
2,540,998

9,684,898

(7,8O3,417)

(7 ,803,4't7)

1,124,062

(8,927,479)

(7,889,s07)

(0.20)

(o 03)

Director
DIN No. 03568360

17

X ProliU(Loss) Iorthe period

Xl Earning Per Equity Share (Basic and Diluted)

(Face Value Rs. 4 per Equity Share)

' i) Before Exceptional & Extraordinary ltems

ii) After Exceptional & Extraordinary ltems

Signif icant Accounting Policies & Notes 'l-25

The accompanying notes are an integral part ol the Financial Statement.

18

(0.18)

(0.12)

Sandeep Dey
cFo
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Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 31 st March, 2016

DESCRIPTION

Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Net Profit belore lnterest, Tax & Extraordinary ltems
Adiustment for :

Depreciation

Dividend Received

lnterest Received

Extra Ordinary ltem

Operating Prolit before Working Capital Changes
Changes in working Capital :

Trade & Other Receivables

Other Current Assets

Loans & Advances
' Trade Payables & Other Liabilities

Net Cash lrom Operating Activities

Cash Flow lrom lnvesting Activities
Purchase / Sale oI Fixed Assets
lncrease/Decrease in lnvestments
Dividend Received

Net Cash Flow lrom lnvesting Activities

Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Secured and Unsecured Liabililities
lnterest Received

Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Net lncrease in Cash and Cdsh Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents (Opening Bilance)

Cash and Cash Equivalents (Closing Balance)

For the Year ended
3lst March, 2016

For the Year ended
3lst March, 2015

(Bs.)

(6,912,508)

1,147,591

(14,550)

(375,532)

420,171

(5,734,828)

(12,357)

(335,752)

(875,266)

6,803,670

(Rs)

(7 ,803,417)

3,387,745

(6,940)

(2109,419)

(1J24p62)

(s,9s5,093)

(21s)

(230,389)

(331,250)

11,489,184

(A)

(B)

(c)
(A+B+C)

054,534)

(132,s03)

(9,951)

14,550

. '027,s04)

(40,000)

375,532

53,094

514,787

567,881

,4,971;237

(24,202]|

(213,410)

6,940

(230,672)

(5,236,440\

409,419

(86,456)

601 ,243

. 514,787

33s,s32 (4,827,0?1)

Place : Kolkala

Dateo : 3otn May, 2016

As per our Report ol even date

For Shambhu Kedla & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regd. No. 31901 1 E
CA. S. K. Kedia

Propietor
Membership No. 0 42

Fer ATN INTEBNATIONAL LIMITEO

Santosh Kumar Jain
Managing Director
DIN No. 00174235

Pranab Chakraborty
Diector

DIN No. 03568360
Sandeep Dey

CFO
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH,2O16

1. SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Basis of Preparation :

The linancial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally acccepted accounting principles in
lndia under the historical cost convention on accrual basis. These financial statements have been prepared to
comply in all material aspects with the Accounting Standards notified under the relevant provisions ol the
Companies Act, 2013.

B. Fixed Assets :

Fixed Assets are stated at the cost less accumulated depreciation. Cost is inclusive of lreight, duties, taxes
incidental expenses related to acquisition and also any cosl directly attributable to bringing lhe assets to its
working condition for its intended use.

C. Depreciation :

Depreciation on Fixed Asset is provided to the extent of depreciable amount on the Straight Line Method
(SLM). Depreciation is provided based on useful life of the assets as perscribed in Schedule ll of the Companies
Act, 2013.

D. lnvestments:

lnvestments are stated at cost, less amount written off under Scheme for Reduction of Capital as approved by
Hon'ble Calcutta High Court.

E. Revenue Recognition :

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is possible that the economic benefifs will flow to the Company and
the revenue can be reliably measured.

E.'l . Sale ol Services consultancy : lncome f rom Services is recognised as per the term of contract contract
on accrual basis.

E.2. Dividend are recognised on cash basis.

F. Expenses:

All expenses have been accbunted for on accrual basis except interest which is accounted on cash basis.
Service tax is being acbounted as and when paid.

G. Gratuity :

The Company has taken Group Gratuity policy from Life lnsurance Corporation of lndia for its employees.

H. Estimates :

The preparation of linancial statements in conformity with the generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumption that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the results of operations during
the reporting period. Although these estimates are based upon mangement's best knowledge of current events
and act'ions, aclual results could differ from these estimates.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAB ENOED 31ST M ARCH,2016 (Contd.)

As at 31st
March, 2016

As at 31st
March, 2015

(Rs.) (Rs)

2. SHARE CAPITAL

AUTHORISED

'l0,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Bs.4/- each.

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED & PAID UP

3,94,50,000 Equity Shares ot Rs. 4/- each.

400,000,000 400,000,000

400,000,000 400,000,000

157,800,000 157,800,000

Total 157,800,000 157,800,000

2.1 The Company has only one class of Equity Shares having a par value of Rs. 4/- each. Each Shareholder
of equity share is entitled lo one vote per share. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is
subiect to the approval of shareholders. ln the event ol liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to
receive the remaining assets of the company, atter distribution ol all preferential amounts, in proportion
to their shareholding.

Beconciliation ol lhe number of shaaes.outstanding

Number of shares at the beginning

Add : Shares issued during the year

Less : Shares bought back during the year

Number of shares at the end

No. of Shares No. of Shares

39,450,000 39,450,000

39,450,000 39,450,000

2.3 Details ol the shareholders holding more lhan 5 o/o of the shares alongwith number ot shares held :

Name ol Shareholder No. ot Shares No. ot Shares

NIL NIL NIL
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST M ARCH,2O16 (CONtd.)

As at 31st
March, 20t6

As at 31st
March, 2015

(Rs)

4,200,000 4,200,000

4,200,000 4,200,000

(1 12,309,450)

(4,602,671)

(116,912,121) 012,309,449)

(112,712,1211 (1 08,1 09,449)

93,500,000 93,500,000

(Rs.)

3. RESERVE & SURPLUS

Securities Premium Account
As per Last Balance Sheet

Surplus/(Loss) as per Statement of Profit and Loss

As per last Balance Sheet

Add : Profit (Loss) for the Year

4. LONG.TERM BORROWING

A. Secured

Loan from Rural Electrilication Corporation Ltd
(A Government of lndia Undertaking)

B. Unsecured

Debenture "A" Series

Bond

Total

1 ,629,000

226,000

(111 ,271,278)

(1,038,171)

1 ,669,000

226,000

Total 95,3s5,000 95,39s,m0

4.A.1 - 4.A. 1- The above loan is secured against movable and immovable properties except book debts both

present and luture in respect ot wind power proieit and guaranteed by a director and 2 ex-director.

4.A.2 - The company has not made any provision for interest amounting to Rs.94.50 lac during the year on the

above loan. The interest not provided on Loan Irom FIEC including earlier years is Rs 1825.08 Lacs.

4.A.3 - FtEC has filed a recovery suit against the company lor recovery of dues which is pending at the Court

ol Law. The Company has paid RS.2OO lacs on the directives received from the cou . The amount of Rs 200

Lacs has been separately shown as advances under Loans & Advances.

4.8.1 - Debenture ,,A" Series ol Rs. '16.29 Lacs (P.Y. Bs. 16.69 Lacs) and Bonds of Rs.2.26 Lacs are

secured against fixed deposit of Rs. 34.30 Lacs (including accruded interest) as on 31st March, 2016 (P.Y.

Rs. 32 Lacs) with Canaia Bank, Princep Street Branch, Kolkata held exclusively for discharge of these

liabjlities and payment on account of these liabilities are pending lor non submission of valid claim docu-

rnents by the debenture / bond holders.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST M ARCH,zO1G (Contd.)

As at 31st
March, 2016

As at 31st
March,2015

(Rs.) (Rs)

5. DEFFERED TAX LIABILITIES

Deferred Tax Liability

Diferrence between Written Down Value of Block ot
Assets as per lncome Tax laws and Book Written
Down Value of the Fixed Assets

Deferred Tax Assets

Business Losses C/F

3,327,356

3,293,677

3,559,686

1,636,342

Total 33,679 1,923,345

6. TRADE PAYABLES

Payables tor Goods & Services 27,294,154 20,'146,910

Total 27,294,154 20,146,910

7. OTHEB CURRENT LIABILITIES

Expenses Payable 1 ,113,567 1,457,141

Total 1,113,567 1,457,141

57

t:



ATN INTERNATIONAL LIMITED Annual Heport 2015-16

rj
q

6-
6a

@_

..,.

o
ot

I

rj
l:

o
6r"

rj

lr,-

I

o
(\i

o-

FoF

I

<o-

<d

I

I

o-Pi -.3 = 3 I Pt4aa;=o=9geiEi<Ei=tseEEoA:bBbE:bPbrtsi'iiEEgEo=9-e29:;EEocoE EE€EE = EE EFJOO=uri(.)=<.)

nLo(oF*

sosl co c\t ro) co
ooo)co.a6lC\J TD O) -!rl_ F-- o)_
<\) a, o)

$@oro)
oo(o<tC!Lr)F.F
c\rco@

l-lFO.o

-<\
r.) (o <o

lt.ltt

t(Dl<D cD co
c.i c.t o.i c.i o,c\r o o,

tt
llF-co

(r)N
e@c\tc!

(o
lrf

<l' O F C) l.* co$60r!o sodd^idFiotrtc\r !o F o ,.- o)
(o ro (o

ltltttt

llltttl

sot-@(')9000
ooc\JoF-o)Fc)F-o)<o.rt- F-- o_ o- ,.- r-
c\J(r)(Orr)(O

RF
>9?

=6

>t?

=E

€R
-

EE fi
i5o>

EO
<q

=

= _;.

-?
-Q;

o

t-

z
E

=
E

ti
-e
\a
(o

o
C.l

ro
ac

=Fo
(t
o
uJo
uJ
tr
uJ

ul
EF
troll
U'Fz
UJ

=uJF
F
at
J
3oz

tr
oF
a
u,ltg,th<' u,o

o.
l!
x
lI-

58

t:



ATN INTERNATIONAL LIMITED Annual Report 201$16

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

NorES To FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FoR THE YEAR ENDED 31 sr M ARCH, 2o1 6' (contd. )
9. NON-CURRENTINVESTMET.ITS

(Valued at Cost )

st.
No.

Partlculars

No, ot
Shares/

UnitY
Bonds

Amouni
(RsJ

No. ol
Shares/

Units/
Bonds

Amount
(Rs.)

(A) OUOTED

1 EQUITYSHARES

Aksh Oprifibre Lrd.
Bhansali Engg. polmers Ltd.
Blue Birds
BSEL lnfrastructure Ltd.
C&CConstructionLtd.
CMS lnfotech Ltd.

Coal lndia Ltd.
Frontline Business Solution Ltd.
Gitanjali Gems Ltd.
Gati Ltd.

Guiarat Nre Coke Ltd.

Gvk Power & lnfra Ltd.
Him Futr Com
lndiabulls Real Estate Ltd.
lndianivesh Ltd.

Jord Engineers Ltd.
Luminaire Technologies Ltd.
MBPL
Nahar lntemational Ltd.
Neyveli Lignite Corp Ltd.
NMDC Ltd.

Orbit Corp Ltd.

Penat Pharmadye Ltd.

PNC CapitalTrust Ltd.
Prestige Estate Ltd.
Prime Capitat Marketing Ltd.
Prithvi lnformation Ltd.
Rallis lndia Ltd.
Ram Krishna Fincap Ltd.
Raymond Ltd.

1 ,090

8,051

6,000

165

1 ,630,800
300
180

2,000

1,000

400
4,509

1,500

100

180

26,000

742

600

250

2,000
16,400

500

103,073

1,806

32,800
.9

51 ,463

567,420
378,060

31,686

19,272,950

101,712

900

85,430

10,870

7,448
76,16s

107,730

67 ,297
232

1 ,392,916

27,473

. 48,078
28,414
28,840

155,800

1,000

28,753,459

523,'117

6,47g31;
1 ,068

1 ,090
7,241

8,051

6,000
165

1 ,630,800

180

20;
1 ,000

400

3,500
1,500

100

180

26,000

1 ,000
742-

2,000
16,400

500
100

103,073

1,806

25
32,800

9

51 ,462
139,188

567,420

378,060

31,686
19,272,950

900

49,85;
10,870

7,448
59,7215

107,730
. 67,297

232
I ,392,916

47 ,692
27,473

28,840
155,800

1 ,000
27,888

28,753,459

523,117

5,367
6,479,312

1 ,068
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CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST M ARCH'2O16 (CONtd.)

9. NON-CURBENTINVESTMENTS(Conld)

sr.
No.

Particulars

No. of
Shares/

Units/
Bonds

Amount
(Rs)

No. oI
Shares/

Units/
Bonds

Amount
(RsJ

FlEl Agro Ltd.

Beliance Communication Ltd.

Reliance Natural Resources Ltd.

Reliance Power Ltd.

Scan lnlrastructure Limited

Shree Shaleen Textiles Ltd.

Silicon Valley lnlotech Ltd

Sterling Holiday Resort Ltd.

Thomas Cook lndia Ltd.

Twenty First Century (lndia) Ltd

Unisys Software & Holding lndustries Ltd

Videocon lndustries Ltd.

MUTUAL FUNDS

Alliance Fund Mgmt Ltd

Mastergain'92 (UTl)

43,336

3,725-

67

52,660,51.2

8,815,090

5,1 18, 139

32,625
208,000

8,236,580

16,835

5,444,992 133,333,748 5,449,276 133,323,797

24,800
50

12

134,750

139,000

2,463,839

1 ,023
20,800

820,200
72

,000

,100

1 ,000
14,100

9,400
183,300

15,100 192,700 15,100 192,700

TOTAL VALUE OF QUOTED INVESTMENTS (A)

MARKET VALUE OF OUOTED INVESTMENTS

Less : Beduction in Capital Reduction Scheme

as per Hob'ble Calcutta High Court Order

133,526,rt48 133,515,497

56,173,167 130,269,386

10,356,924 10,356,924

123,169,524 123,159,573

9.1 9.1 The company has valued the investment at cost against lower of cost or market value of each script

individually as required by Accounting Standard 13 issued by lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia.

However, the company has a provision of Rs. 5,70,97,107/- on account of diminution in value ol investment as

per order ol the Hon,ble catcutta High court dated 10.08.05 out of which Rs. 4,67,40,183/- is utilised leaving a

balance of Rs 1 ,03,56,924r. After giving effect the investment are shown higher by Rs. 1028.81 Lacs (previous

year Rs. 488.42 Lacs).

9.2 Market value of Quoted lnvestment is valued by the management as per rate'prevaling on last date ol the

accounting year or last traded rate / date.

60

,l

14

9,400
183,300

24,800

50

50

'134,750

1 39,000
2,463,839

853

20,800

820,200

72

43,336

3,725

67

s2,660,512

b,ar s,oso
5,118,139

32,744-

208,000

8,236,580

16,835
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i

I

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAH ENDED 31ST M ARCH,2O16 (Contd.)

As at 31st
March, 2016

As at 3lst
March, 2015

(Fs) (FsJ

10. TRADERECIEVABLES

Outstanding for more than six months

Unsecured, Considered Good

Others

Unsecured, Considered Good

s3,865

12,573

53,865

215

Total 66,438 3r,080

11. CASH & BANK BALANCES
(As certilied by the management)

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash Balance

Balance in Current Accounts with Scheduled Banks

2,738

565,143

48,050

466,737

567,881 514,787

12. SHORTTEBMS LOANS AND ADVANCES

Unsecured, Considered Good

Advances To Body Corporate

Advance Recoverable in cash or in kind or
for value to be received

Deposit

22,357,736

317,029

21 ,442,470
317,029

Total 2.,674,765 21,799,499

13. OTHER CUBRENT ASSETS

Tax Deducted at Source

Fixed Deposits

1 ,770,685
5,012,971

1,770,571

4,677,332

Total 6,783,656 6,r97,903

6l
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FoR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST M ARcH,2o16 (contd.)

For the Year ended Forthe Year ended
31st March, 2016 3lst March,20l5

14. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Consualtancy Receipt

Sepculation profit

Rent Received
Profit on sale of investment
lnterest lncome
Dividend

Miscellanious Receipt

(Rs)

. 355

372,OO0

24,950

375,532

14,550

(Rs)

630,000

8,878

345,000
275,243
409,419

6,940
206,000

Total 787,387 1,881,481

15. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT COSTS

Salaries & Bonus

E.S.l. Contribution
Employer's Contribution to P.F.

Gratuity Fund

3,173,608

50,157
145,300

71 ,758

3,477 ,143
53,124

150,910

74,978

Total 3,440,823 3,756,155

16. OTHER EXPENSES

Advertisement

Audit fees

Bank Charges

Books Periodicals

Computer Maintenance

Custodian Charges

Electricity Charges
Filling Fees
lnterest on trD

lnternalAudit Fees
lssuer Expenses
Legal & Professir.:n.1 Cilarges
Listing Fees
Membership & subscription
Motor Car Expenses

Postage & Courier charges

84,608
214,090

1,137

99,322

206,544
336,800

15,000

95,000
15,000

69,889

u,125
359,552

33,241

427,1U
3b,851

146,884

44,090

3,881

4,370
125,561

221 ,O97

381, r 10

8,400

15,000

18,971

255,677

33,444

466,878

46,662
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST M ARCH,2O,I6 (Contd.)

For the Year ended For the Year ended
31st March, 2016 31st March,2015

(RsJ

'118,541

393

228,179

25,642

1 ,O42

303

76,U.5

694,289

16,026

e8,399

Total 3,111,481 2,540,998

16. OTHER EXPENSES (Contd )
Printing & Stationery

Delay paying charges

Rent. Rates & Taxes

Repair & Maintenance

Securities transaction t;x
Share Trading Statutory Expenses

Share Translerred Expenses

Telephone expenses

l\4isc. Expenses

Travelling & Conveyance

(Rs)

108,486

s:9s4
225,244

27 ,435
2,765

824

28,090

208,168

73,926

88,080

17. EXTRA OBDINARY ITEMS

Sundry Balance Written Off

Liabiiity Belating to Previous Year

Liabilities no longer required Written off

87,050

(s07 ,221)|

(420,1711

39,450,000

(6,912,508)

(4,602,671)

. (0.18)

(0.12)

328,752

795,310

1,124,062

39,450,000

(7 ,803,417)

(1,038,172)

(0.20)

(0.03)

17.1 Extra Ordinary items represents the old liabilities of Rs. 5,07,2211 written off and Rs. 87,050/- paid.

Total

EARNING PER SHABE

Weighted Average No. of Equity Shares of Rs. 4/- each

Prolit After Tax but before Exceptional and Extraordinary ltems

Prolit After Tax and Exceptional and Extraordinary ltems

Earning Per Share

1 . EPS Before Exceptional and Extraordinary ltems (B + A)

2. EPS After Exceptional and Extraordinary ,tems (C + A)

18.

A)

B)

c)

D)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST M ARCH,2016 (Contd.)

19.INCOME & EXPENSES IN FOREIGN CURRENCY

Pariiculars CurrentYear PreviousYear

Expenses

lncome

20. AUDITORS REMUNERATION

Pa.rticulars

Total

(a) Statutory Audit Fees 33,090 33,090

(b) ln Other Capacities 1 1 ,000 1 1 ,000

CurrentYear PreviousYear

44,090 44,090Tolal

21. Related Parties Disclosures: .

List of related partles with whom lransactlons have taken place and relationship :

(A) Key Management Personnel & Relatives:

Name of the Related Party :

1) Santosh KumarJain Managing Director DIN 00174235

01318581

03568360

06997186

07150790
:AHOPD3564D

03073797

2) Tarak Nath Datta

3) Pranab Chakraborty

4) Krishna Banerjee

5) Madhu Barnwal.
6) Sandeep Dey

7) Niladri Bihari Barik -

8) Manisha Lath ..

Manisha Lath

Sandeep Dey

Director

Director

Director

Director

cFo

DIN

DIN

DIN

DIN

PAN

Company Secretary
- Madhu Barnwal and Niladri Bihari Barik were appointed during the year w.e.f . 13'08.2015.
.. Manisha Lath has resigned during the year w.e.f . 15.1 1 .201 5.

(B) Enterprises over which above person has signilicant inlluence :

Name ol the Related Party

1) Silicon Valley lnfotech Limited

(C) Transaction with person mention in (A) above :

Remuneration paid to

Director DIN

Rs. 340,7301

Rs. 245,571 I - (P.Y. Rs. 21 7,473l-)
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(D) Transaction with the enterprise mention in (B) above :

Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.)
201$16 201+.15

Purchase ot Shares ( lnvestment)

Silicon Valley tnfotech Ltd.

Advance Taken

Silicon Valley tnfotech Ltd.

Advance Repaid

Silicon Valley lnlotech Ltd.

Balance Payable at year end
Silicon Valley tnfotech Ltd.

6,190,000

1 ,350,000

25,000

27,295,000

19,780,000

529,767

4,609

19,780,000

Santosh Kumar Jain
Managing Director
DIN No.00174235

Pranab Chakraborty
Director

DIN No. 03568360
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22' Since the company operates in one segment only i.e. trading in shares & securities, therelore. the clause
relating to segment wise report is not applicable lo the company.

23' The Company has not made provision for Loss in value of inoperative Wind power project in terms ot
Accounting Standard - 28 (lmpairment of Assets) issued by lCAl.

24' A' ln the opinion ol the Board ol Directors, Current Assets, Loans and Advances have a value on lhe
realisation in the ordinary course of business at least equal to amount at which they are slated in the
Balance Sheet.

B. certain Debitand credit Barances incruding Trade Receivabres and payabres, Bank Barances and Advances
are subject to confirritation and consequential reconciliation thereof.

25. Previous year's figures have been re-arranged and re-grouped wherever necessary.

For ATN INTERNATIONAL LtMtTED

Place : Kolkata

Dated : 3oth May, 20.16

As per our Report of ever) cjate
For Shambhu Kedia & Co.

Chaftered Accountants
Firm Regd. No. 31901 1 E

CA. S. K. Kedia
Propietor

Membership No. 0{,4042
Sandeep Dey'

CFO

.l
I
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E.MAIL REGISTRATION FORM

FOf, SHABEHOLDERS HOLDING SHARES IN PHYSICAL FORM

To,
Maheshwari Datamatics Pvt. Ltd.
Unit : ATN lnternational Ltd.
6, Mangoe Lane, 2nd Floor
Kolkata - 700 00t
Phone : 033-2243-580912248-2248

Dear Sirs,

Re : Registration of email lD for receiving communications in electronic form

lAlVe am/are shareholder of the Company. l/VVe want to receive all communication from the Company
including AGM and other General Meeting notices and explanatory statement(s) thereto. Balance Sheets,
Directors Report, Auditor's Report etc. through email. Please register my e-mail lD, set out below, in your
records for sending communication through e-mail :

Folio No.

Name of 1st Begistered Holder

Name ol Joint Holde(s)

Address

Pin Code

E-mail lD (to be registered)

Contact Tel. Nos.: Mobile

Landline

PAN No.

Date : Signature:

lmportant Notes :

1. On registralion, all the communication will be sent to the e-mail lD registered in the folio.
2. The form is also available on the website of the Company www.atninternational.co.in
3. Any change in e-mail lD, lrom time to time, may please be registered in.the records ot the Company.

FOR SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING SHARES IN DEMAT FORM

Members holding share in demat rorm may registerthe e-mails with their respective depository participant.

t:
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ATN INTERNATIONAL LIMTTED
Regd. Office : 10, Princep Street, 2nd Floor, Kolkata -VOO 072, Phone : 033{OO22BBO,Fax .033-22379053
E-mail : info@atninternational.co.in, Website : www.atninternational.co.in, CIN : L65993WB19g3pLCOgO793

PROXY FORM
[Pursuantto section 105(6) of the companiesAct,20l3 and Rute 19(3) of the companies

(Management and Administration) Rules, 20.141

Name of the Membe(s) Registered Address

E-mail lD Folio No./DP lD/Client lD No.

I / we, being the membe(s) of ....................... shares of the above named company, hereby appoint
1. Name :

E-mail ld :

2. Name:

E-mail ld :

3. Name:

E-mail ld :

Address :

Signature

Address :

Signature

Address :

Signature

or failing him

or failing him

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at 32nd Annual General Meeting of the
company, to be held on the Monday of September 26,2016 at 9.30 a.m. at Rotary Sadan, 94/2, Chowringhee Road,
Kolkata - 700 020 and at any adjourhment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below :

Reso.
No.

Resolution Proposed Optional
For Aqainst

Ordinary Business

1 Adoption of Audited Financial Statements, Reports of the Board of Directors,
and Auditors'

2 Re-appointment of Smt. Krishna Baner:jee, Director, retiring by rotation.

J Appointment of Ms. P.K.Ajitsaria; Chartered Accountants as Auditors

Signed this day of- 2016

Signature of shareholder Signature of Proxyholde(s)

Note: '1. This form of proxy in order to be effectlve should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the
Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting

2. For the Resolutions, Explanatory Statement and Notes, please refer to the Notice of the Thirty Second Annual General
Meeting.

3. ltisoptional toindicateyourpreference. lfyouleave'for'or'against'columnblankagainstanyorall resolutions,youproxy
will be entitled to vote in the manner as he/she may deem appropriate.

-++ ---&<
ATN INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Regd. Office :.'10, Princep Street, 2nd Floor, Kolkata - 7OO 072, Phone : 033400228S0 , Fax : 033-22379053
E-mail : info@atninternational.co.in, Website : www.atninternational.co.in, CIN : L65993WB19g3pLCOgO7g3

ATTENDANCE SLIP
32ND ANNUAL GENERAL MEET!NG

Registered Folio No. DP lD No.

No. of Shares Client lD No.

I hereby record my presence at the 32nd ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company, to be held at the Rotary
Sadan,94/2, chowringhee Road, Kolkata -700 020 on Monday, 26th september,2016 at 9.30 a.m. 

,

Member's / Proxy's Name in Block Letters Member's / Proxy's Signature
Notes : 1. Please carry with you this Attendance Slip and hand over the same duly signed at the space provided, at the entrance of

the Meeting Hall. 2. Please also bring your copy of the Annual Report.

ELECTRONIC VOTING PARTICULARS
EVSN USER ID DEFAULT PAN / SEQUENCE NO.

1 6080401 3 Please refer to Note No. 16.1. in the Notice




